
Oadby and Wigston Borough Council

TO COUNCILLOR:

Miss A R Bond
G A Boulter

Mrs L M Broadley (Chair)
Ms K M Chalk

Miss M V Chamberlain (Vice-Chair)
M H Charlesworth

M L Darr
R F Eaton

R E Fahey
J Kaufman

Mrs H E Loydall
R H Thakor

Dear Councillor et al

I hereby summon you to attend a meeting of the LICENSING AND REGULATORY COMMITTEE to be 
held at the COUNCIL OFFICES, STATION ROAD, WIGSTON on THURSDAY, 6 APRIL 2017 at 7.00 
PM for the transaction of the business set out in the Agenda below.

Yours faithfully

Council Offices
Wigston
29 March 2017

Mark Hall
Chief Executive

I T E M  N O . A G E N D A P A G E  N O ’ S

1.  Apologies for Absence

2.  Appointment of Substitutes

To appoint substitute Members in accordance with Rule 4 of Part 4 of the 
Constitution.

3.  Declarations of Interest

Members are reminded that any declaration of interest should be made having 
regard to the Members’ Code of Conduct. In particular, Members must make 
clear the nature of the interest and whether it is 'pecuniary' or ‘non-pecuniary'.

4.  Minutes of the Previous Meeting held on 29 September 2016 1 - 2

To read, confirm and sign the minutes of the previous meeting in accordance 
with Rule 17 of Part 4 of the Constitution.

5.  Action List Arising from the Meeting held on 29 September 2016 3

6.  Petitions and Deputations

To receive any Petitions and, or, Deputations in accordance with Rule 24 of 
Part 4 of the Constitution.

7.  Environmental Health and Licensing Sections Update 4 - 47



MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE LICENSING AND REGULATORY COMMITTEE HELD AT 
THE COUNCIL OFFICES, STATION ROAD, WIGSTON ON THURSDAY, 29 SEPTEMBER 

2016 COMMENCING AT 7.00 PM

IN ATTENDANCE:
Chair - Councillor Mrs L M Broadley

Vice-Chair - Councillor Miss M V Chamberlain

COUNCILLORS (10):
Miss A R Bond

G A Boulter
Ms K M Chalk

M H Charlesworth

M L Darr
R F Eaton
R E Fahey
J Kaufman

Mrs H E Loydall
R H Thakor

OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE (2):
S J Ball Ms P Samuels

Min
Ref. Narrative Officer

Resp.

7.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

None.

8.  APPOINTMENT OF SUBSTITUTES

None.

9.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

None.

10.  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 20 JULY 2016

RESOLVED THAT:  

The minutes of the previous meeting of the Committee held on 20 July 2016 
be taken as read, confirmed and signed.

11.  PETITIONS AND DEPUTATIONS

None.

12.  SCALE OF FEES AND CHARGES 2017/18

The Committee gave consideration to the report and appendix (at pages 4 - 
9) as delivered and summarised by the Senior Democratic Services Officer / 
Legal Officer which should be read together with these minutes as a 
composite document.

The Chair moved the recommendation as set out at paragraph 2.1 of the 
report (at page 4).

The Vice-Chair seconded the recommendation.

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



Councillors Mrs H E Loydall and M H Charlesworth stated that the 
government failed to acknowledge that the statutorily-fixed fees and charges 
did not accurately reflect the monetary costs in real terms of administering 
the services. She further stated that not all fees and charges for 
discretionary services (as set out in the appendix) were accurately recorded 
in the narrative against the RPI increase at 1.9%. 

The Members requested the Chair to liaise with the Interim Chief Finance 
Officer / Section 151 Officer to correct the same.

MHo
CR

13.  HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE CHECKS 
(VERBAL UPDATE)

The Committee gave consideration to the verbal update as delivered by the 
Enviromental Health Team Leader.

The Enviromental Health Team Leader informed the Committee that 
ongoing checks were being undertaken by the Licensing Enforcement 
Officer on an ad-hoc basis against hackney carriage and private hire 
(HC/PH) vehicles licensed with this authority. She advised that those 
vehicles and drivers who were found to be non-compliant had been written 
to and the necessary enforcement taken accordingly.

She further informed Members that on 20 September 2016, licensing 
officers from this Council attended a multi-agency enforcement exercise 
held at East Midlands Airport, Castle Donington which checked HC/PH 
vehicles from different regional authority areas. A local enforcement 
exercise was also said to be scheduled for 30 September at Manor Road, 
Oadby between the hours of 08:00 pm and 01:00 am in response to 
complaint received in respect of HC/PH drivers illegally plying for hire.

Councillor Mrs H E Loydall enquired as to what work had been undertaken 
by the Licensing Enforcement Officer to reduce incidences of HC/PH vehicle 
defects.

The Enviromental Health Team Leader that the information requested was 
not available at the meeting and would be circulated to Members 
accordingly.

The Chair requested that at update regarding the enforcement exercise on 
30 September be reported back to the next meeting of the Committee.

PS
TA

THE MEETING CLOSED AT 7.12 PM


CHAIR

THURSDAY, 06 APRIL 2017

Page 2



LICENSING AND REGULATORY COMMITTEE

ACTION LIST
ARISING FROM A MEETING HELD ON THURSDAY, 29 SEPTEMBER 2016

Min Ref. Title Action To Be Taken Officer Target Date On Target

12. Scale of Fees 
and Charges 
2017/16

The discretionary fees and 
charges’ narratives be 
corrected to accurately 
reflect the proposed 
increase(s) against RPI.

MHo
CR

Nov-16 Yes

13. Hackney 
Carriage and 
Private Hire 
Vehicle Checks 
(Verbal Update)

An update regarding taxi-
licensing enforcement 
exercises, including 30 
September, to be reported 
back to the next meeting of 
the Committee.

PS
TA

Apr-17 Yes

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



Licensing and 
Regulatory Committee

Thursday, 06 April 
2017 Matter for Information

Title: Environmental Health and Licensing Sections Update

Author: Paulette Samuels (Environmental Health Team Leader)

1. Introduction

This report is to advise and update the Licensing and Regulatory Committee on 
developments in licensing guidance, legislation and performance pertaining to the 
Environmental Health and Licensing sections of the Borough Council.

2. Recommendations

Members are asked to note the contents of the report.

3. Information

3.1 Licensing - Enforcement and Updates

Scale of Fees and Charges

The narrative on the Scale of Fees and Charges presented to Committee on 29 
September 2016 has been altered as requested. This is attached at Appendix 1.

Administration and Enforcement 

A verbal update will be provided at the meeting by the Licensing Enforcement Officer.

Planned Training

On Thursday 18 May 2017, both Licensing Officers will be attending training on 
Licensing Enforcement in London (as presented on 15 March during the Members’ 
Training Session). This will be organised and delivered by the Institute of Licensing.

3.2 Environmental Health – Enforcement and Updates

Food Hygiene Inspections

In line with the ‘Food Safety and Health and Safety Service Plan 2016 - 2017’, food 
hygiene inspections have been undertaken by qualified Environmental Health Officers 
throughout the year. Full statistical data for 2016/17 is attached at Appendix 2.

Dog Fouling and Stray Dog Service

A verbal update will be provided at the meeting by the Environmental Health Team 
Leader.

Public Space Protection Order (PSPO) – Dogs and Dog Fouling

Advice and guidance is being sought from our legal team as to the process of 
introducing a PSPO in readiness for when the current Dog Control Orders expire in 
September 2017.

Page 4

Agenda Item 7



3.3 Regulatory Updates 

Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 (ASBCPA 2014)

This legislation provides an effective means of dealing with matters which meet three 
qualifying criteria:

• one which is having a detrimental effect on the quality of life of those in the 
locality;

• is a behaviour persistent or continuing in nature; and
• is unreasonable.

The Enforcing Officer makes that determination and can issue a Community 
Protection Warning (CPW) which, if not complied with, can then be followed by a 
Community Protection Notice (CPN). Both CPW’s and CPN’s are prepared under 
section 43 of the ASBCPA 2014.

Home Office guidance1 produced in 2014 exists to assist Officers in the execution of 
these powers. The broader delegation of these powers to other officers could improve 
enforcement outcomes across the spectrum of housing and licensing issues.

A Professional Practice Note2 produced by the CIEH (Chartered Institute of 
Environmental Health) also offers guidance to EH practitioners on the use of CPN’s. 
This clearly states these cannot be used in instances where a statutory nuisance has 
been substantiated. Other relevant legislation exists for that, such as within part 3 of 
the Environmental Protection Act 1990.

It is open for the Committee to consider and discuss these aforementioned points for 
more detailed review at the next meeting of the Committee in the new municipal year.

Policing and Crime Act 2017 

New powers are to be introduced on 06 April 2017 to safeguard against abuse of the 
licensing system by those who are not permitted to work in this country. 

Statement of Licensing Policy 2015 – 2020

A copy of the Statement of Licensing Policy 2015 – 2020 is attached at Appendix 3 
for Members’ perusal.

Future Training for Committee Members

The Chair, Vice-Chair and Members are asked to inform the Environmental Health 
Team Leader what training they would like delivered during 2017/2018.

Partnership Working

A number of successful joint-initiatives and action with colleagues in the Fire Service, 
Police and Public Health England (PHE) have, and will continue to ensure better 
outcomes for residents and businesses in and across the Borough.

1 Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014: Reform of anti-social behaviour 
powers. Statutory guidance for frontline professionals. July 2014
2 Professional Practice Note ‘Guidance on the use of Community Protection Notices under 
part 4 of the Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014’

Page 5



Better Business for All (BBfA)

This is a model of joint-working designed to ease the regulatory burden, particularly on 
SME’s (Small and Medium Sized Enterprises), and ensure a more proactive targeted, 
risk-based approach to enforcement.

3.4. Matters Reported to the Service Delivery Committee Meeting on 21 March 2017

Other regulatory matters were reported in the ‘Corporate Enforcement Update’ penned 
by the Environmental Health Team Leader. This included: dog fouling, pest control 
requests: abandoned vehicles and a general presentation on the enforcement options 
to deal with litter, fly-tipping and accumulations. This is attached at Appendix 4.

Background Documents:-

• Scale of Licensing Fees and Charges Summary (Appendix 1)
• Food Hygiene Inspections – Statistical Data for 2016/17 (Appendix 2)
• Statement of Licensing Policy 2015 – 2020 (Appendix 3)
• Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014: Reform of anti-social 

behaviour powers. Statutory guidance for frontline professionals. July 2014
• Professional Practice Note ‘Guidance on the use of Community Protection 

Notices under part 4 of the Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014’
• Report entitled ‘Corporate Enforcement Update’ of the Environmental Health 

Team Leader presented at the Services Delivery Committee Meeting on 21 
March 2017 (Appendix 4)

Email: paulette.samuels@oadby-wigston.gov.uk Tel: (0116) 257 2613

Implications
Financial (CR) No direct implications arising from this report.
Legal (SB) No direct implications arising from this report.

Risk (PJS)
CR4 - Reputation Damage.
CR6 - Regulatory Governance. 

New changes to legislation may put the Council’s reputation at risk.
No direct implications arising from this report.
Equality Assessment:-Equalities (PJS)

Initial Screening Full Assessment Not Applicable

Page 6



Appendix 1

DESCRIPTION OF CHARGE

V
A

T UNIT

DATE OF 

LAST 

CHANGE
2016/17

£

2017/18

£ E
x

te
rn

a
ll
y

 

S
e

t

Explanation regarding the recommended level of charge

2 LICENCES

2.1 HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE CARS

(a) Driver's Licence - Private Hire and Hackney Carriage*

i) One Year N Each 1-Apr-16 75.00 77.00 RPI @1.9%

ii) Two Year N Each 1-Apr-16 140.00 143.00 RPI @1.9%

iii) Three Year N Each 1-Apr-15 195.00 199.00 RPI @1.9%

(b) Competence Test N Each 1-Apr-14 35.00 40.00 RPI @1.9%

(c) Drivers Badge - Replacement N Each 1-Apr-13 20.00 21.00 RPI @1.9%

(d) Private Hire Operator's Licence

i) One Year N Each 1-Apr-15 260.00 265.00 RPI @ 1.9%

ii) Two Year N Each 1-Apr-16 483.00 490.00 RPI @ 1.9%

iii) Three Year N Each 1-Apr-15 670.00 685.00 RPI @ 1.9%

iv) Four Year N Each 1-Apr-16 820.00 830.00 RPI @ 1.9%

v) Five Year N Each 1-Apr-16 932.00 940.00 RPI @ 1.9%

vi) Operators Licence Competency Test* Each 1-Apr-14 35.00 36.00 RPI @ 1.9%

(e) Private Hire Vehicle Licence N Each 1-Apr-14 225.00 230.00 RPI @ 1.9%

(f) Private Hire Vehicle Licence - Age Exempt N Each 1-Apr-14 260.00 265.00 RPI @ 1.9%

(g) Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licence N Each 1-Apr-14 240.00 245.00 RPI @ 1.9%

(h) Hackney Carriage Licence - Age Exempt N Each 1-Apr-14 275.00 280.00 RPI @ 1.9%

(i) Replacement of Vehicle Licence Plate N Each 1-Apr-15 25.00 26.00 RPI @ 1.9%

(j) Transfer of Vehicle Licence to Another Licensee N Each 1-Apr-14 45.00 46.00 RPI @ 1.9%

(k) Transfer of Licence from Private Hire Vehicle to Hackney Carriage (vice-versa) Each 1-Apr-14 N/A

(l) Sale of Vehicle Licence Bracket N Each 1-Apr-14 22.00 23.00 RPI @ 1.9%

(m) Certificate of Compliance Each 1-Apr-14 5.00 5.50 RPI @ 1.9%

(n) Replacement of Vehicle Licence (paper) Each 1-Apr-14 5.00 5.50 RPI @ 1.9%

(o) Replacement docu-dash Each 1-Apr-15 3.00 3.50 RPI @ 1.9%

(p) Replacement Front Windscreen pouch Each 1-Apr-14 5.00 5.50 RPI @ 1.9%

* Excludes CRB fee £44.00 payable on application and £5.00 DVLA mandate fee

2.2 LICENCE FEES

(a) Animal Boarding Establishment (new) N Each 1-Apr-14 120.00 125.00 RPI @ 1.9%

(b) Animal Boarding Establishment (renewal) Each 1-Apr-14 100.00 105.00 RPI @ 1.9%

(c) Breeding of Dogs (new) N Each 1-Apr-14 120.00 125.00 RPI @ 1.9%

(d) Breeding of Dogs (renewal) Each 1-Apr-14 100.00 105.00 RPI @ 1.9%

(e) Dangerous Wild Animals (new) N Each 1-Apr-14 120.00 125.00 RPI @ 1.9%

(f) Dangerous Wild Animals (renewal) Each 1-Apr-14 100.00 105.00 RPI @ 1.9%

(g) Pet Animal Shop (new) N Each 1-Apr-14 120.00 125.00 RPI @ 1.9%

(h) Pet Animal Shop (renewal) Each 1-Apr-14 100.00 105.00 RPI @ 1.9%

(i) Riding Establishment (new) N Each 1-Apr-14 120.00 125.00 RPI @ 1.9%

(j) Riding Establishment (renewal) Each 1-Apr-14 100.00 105.00 RPI @ 1.9%

NB For licences (a) - (j), vets fees incurred by the Council will be charged to

the applicant

(k) Acupuncture, Tattooing, Ear piercing, Electrolysis - Registration of 

i) Premises  N Each 1-Apr-15 70.00 75.00 RPI @ 1.9%

ii) Person N Each 1-Apr-15 70.00 75.00 RPI @ 1.9%

iii) Person and premises combined N Each 1-Apr-15 110.00 115.00 RPI @ 1.9%

(l) Hairdresser - Registration of Premises and Persons 

i) Premises  N Each 1-Apr-15 70.00 75.00 RPI @ 1.9%

ii) Person N Each 1-Apr-15 70.00 75.00 RPI @ 1.9%

iii) Person and premises combined N Each 1-Apr-15 110.00 115.00 RPI @ 1.9%

(m) Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013

i) Site Licence N Each 1-Apr-15 340.00 350.00 RPI @ 1.9%

ii) Renewal of Site Licence N Each 1-Apr-15 340.00 350.00 RPI @ 1.9%

iii) Collectors Licence N Each 1-Apr-15 300.00 310.00 RPI @ 1.9%

iv) Collectors Renewal of Licence N Each 1-Apr-15 300.00 310.00 RPI @ 1.9%

LICENSING AND REGULATORY COMMITTEE

P
age 7



DESCRIPTION OF CHARGE

V
A

T UNIT

DATE OF 

LAST 

CHANGE
2016/17

£

2017/18

£ E
x

te
rn

a
ll
y

 

S
e

t

Explanation regarding the recommended level of charge

LICENSING AND REGULATORY COMMITTEE

v) Variation to Licence (inc change of site manager) N Each 1-Apr-15 62.00 65.00 RPI @ 1.9%

vi) Change of Circumstance N Each 1-Apr-15 31.00 35.00 RPI @ 1.9%

(n) Street Trading (fixed) per outlet

i) 1 day a week Annual Licence N Each 1-Apr-15 90.00 95.00 RPI @ 1.9%

ii) 1 month licence N Each 1-Apr-15 110.00 115.00 RPI @ 1.9%

iii) 3 month licence N Each 1-Apr-15 160.00 165.00 RPI @ 1.9%

iv) 6 month licence N Each 1-Apr-15 260.00 265.00 RPI @ 1.9%

v) 12 month licence N Each 1-Apr-15 410.00 420.00 RPI @ 1.9%

vi) Transfer of Consent (fixed or mobile) N Each 1-Apr-15 60.00 65.00 RPI @ 1.9%

(o) Street Trading (mobile) per outlet

i) 1 day a week Annual Licence N Each 1-Apr-15 60.00 65.00 RPI @ 1.9%

ii) 1 month licence N Each 1-Apr-15 80.00 85.00 RPI @ 1.9%

iii) 3 month licence N Each 1-Apr-15 110.00 115.00 RPI @ 1.9%

iv) 6 month licence N Each 1-Apr-15 180.00 185.00 RPI @ 1.9%

v) 12 month licence N Each 1-Apr-15 310.00 320.00 RPI @ 1.9%

vi) One off Event Licence N Each 1-Apr-15 75.00 80.00 RPI @ 1.9%

(p) Sex Establishments N Each 1-Apr-15 2310.00 2355.00 RPI @ 1.9%

2.3 LICENSING ACT 2003

(a) Personal Licence

Grant or Renewal of a Personal Licence (valid for 10 years) N Each 1-Apr-11 37.00 37.00 X LA 2003 Schedule 6

(b) Premises Licences / Club Premises Certificates

Annual Fees Rateable Value Bands :-

A (no rateable value to £4,300) N Each 1-Feb-05 70.00 70.00 X LA 2003 Schedule 5

B (£4,301 to £33,000) N Each 1-Feb-05 180.00 180.00 X LA 2003 Schedule 5

C (£33001 to £87,000 N Each 1-Feb-05 295.00 295.00 X LA 2003 Schedule 5

D (£87,001 to £125,000) N Each 1-Feb-05 320.00 320.00 X LA 2003 Schedule 5

E (£125,001 and above) N Each 1-Feb-05 350.00 350.00 X LA 2003 Schedule 5

A multiplier is applied to premises in band D and E where they are

exclusively or primarily in the business of selling alcohol

D (x2) N Each 1-Feb-05 640.00 640.00 X LA 2003 Schedule 5

E (x3) N Each 1-Feb-05 1050.00 1050.00 X LA 2003 Schedule 5

(c) New or Variation of Premises Licences / Club Premises Certificates

Application fees Rateable Value Bands :-

A (no rateable value to £4,300) Each 1-Feb-05 100.00 100.00 X LA 2003 Schedule 2 (wrt Reg 4 (2), (3) and 6 (1)

B (£4,301 to £33,000) Each 1-Feb-05 190.00 190.00 X LA 2003 Schedule 2 (wrt Reg 4 (2), (3) and 6 (1)

C (£33001 to £87,000 Each 1-Feb-05 315.00 315.00 X LA 2003 Schedule 2 (wrt Reg 4 (2), (3) and 6 (1)

D (£87,001 to £125,000) Each 1-Feb-05 450.00 450.00 X LA 2003 Schedule 2 (wrt Reg 4 (2), (3) and 6 (1)

E (£125,001 and above) Each 1-Feb-05 635.00 635.00 X LA 2003 Schedule 2 (wrt Reg 4 (2), (3) and 6 (1)

A multiplier is applied to premises in band D and E where they  are

exclusively or primarily in the business of selling alcohol

D (x2) Each 1-Feb-05 900.00 900.00 X LA 2003 Schedule 2 (wrt Reg 4 (2), (3) and 6 (1)

E (x3) Each 1-Feb-05 1905.00 1905.00 X LA 2003 Schedule 2 (wrt Reg 4 (2), (3) and 6 (1)

(d) Application / Notice

i) Temporary Event notice N Each 1-Feb-05 21.00 21.00 X LA 2003 Schedule 6

ii) Theft, loss, etc of premises licence or summary N Each 1-Feb-05 10.50 10.50 X LA 2003 Schedule 6

iii) Application for a provisional statement where premises being built etc N Each 1-Feb-05 195.00 315.00 X Increase under s29 of LA 2003, (Schedule 6)

iv) Notification of change of name or address N Each 1-Feb-05 10.50 10.50 X LA 2003 Schedule 6

v) Application to vary licence to specify individual as premises supervisor N Each 1-Feb-05 23.00 23.00 X LA 2003 Schedule 6

vi) Application for transfer of premises licence N Each 1-Feb-05 23.00 23.00 X LA 2003 Schedule 6

vii) Interim authority notice following death etc of licence holder N Each 1-Feb-05 23.00 23.00 X LA 2003 Schedule 6

viii) Theft, loss, etc of certificate or summary N Each 1-Feb-05 10.50 10.50 X LA 2003 Schedule 6

ix) Notification of change of name or alteration of rules of club N Each 1-Feb-05 10.50 10.50 X LA 2003 Schedule 6

x) Change of relevant registered address of club N Each 1-Feb-05 10.50 10.50 X LA 2003 Schedule 6

xi) Theft, loss, etc of temporary event notice N Each 1-Feb-05 10.50 10.50 X LA 2003 Schedule 6

xii) Theft, loss, etc of personal licence N Each 1-Feb-05 10.50 10.50 X LA 2003 Schedule 6

xiii) Notification of change of name or address of premises licence holder N Each 1-Feb-05 10.50 10.50 X LA 2003 Schedule 6

P
age 8



DESCRIPTION OF CHARGE

V
A

T UNIT

DATE OF 

LAST 

CHANGE
2016/17

£

2017/18

£ E
x

te
rn

a
ll
y

 

S
e

t

Explanation regarding the recommended level of charge

LICENSING AND REGULATORY COMMITTEE

xiv) Right to freeholder etc to be notified of licensing matters N Each 1-Feb-05 21.00 21.00 X LA 2003 Schedule 6

2.4 GAMBLING ACT 2005

(a) Small Society Lotteries

i) Initial Application Fee N Each 1-Sep-07 40.00 40.00 X The Small society Lotteries (Registration of Non-Commercial Societies) Regulations 2007. Section 3 (b)

ii) Renewal Fee N Each 1-Sep-07 20.00 20.00 X The Small society Lotteries (Registration of Non-Commercial Societies) Regulations 2007. Section 5 (a)

(b) Bingo Premises

i) Premises Licence N Each 1-Apr-15 1200.00 1225.00 RPI @ 1.9%

ii) Annual Fee N Each 1-Apr-15 500.00 515.00 RPI @ 1.9%

iii) Variation of Licence N Each 1-Apr-15 1200.00 1225.00 RPI @ 1.9%

iv) Change of Circumstances N Each 1-Apr-15 40.00 45.00 RPI @ 1.9%

v) Transfer of Licence N Each 1-Apr-15 500.00 515.00 RPI @ 1.9%

vi) Re-instatement Fee N Each 1-Apr-15 500.00 515.00 RPI @ 1.9%

vii) Provisional Statement N Each 1-Apr-15 1200.00 1225.00 RPI @ 1.9%

viii) Copy of Licence N Each 1-Apr-12 25.00 30.00 x The Gambling (Premises Licence Fees) (England and Wales) Regulations 2007 Regulation 13 (2)

(c) Betting Premises (Track) RPI @ 1.9%

i) Premises Licence N Each 1-Apr-15 1200.00 1225.00 RPI @ 1.9%

ii) Annual Fee N Each 1-Apr-15 500.00 515.00 RPI @ 1.9%

iii) Variation of Licence N Each 1-Apr-15 1200.00 1225.00 RPI @ 1.9%

iv) Change of Circumstances N Each 1-Apr-15 50.00 55.00 RPI @ 1.9%

v) Transfer of Licence N Each 1-Apr-15 500.00 515.00 RPI @ 1.9%

vi) Re-instatement Fee N Each 1-Apr-15 500.00 515.00 RPI @ 1.9%

vii) Provisional Statement N Each 1-Apr-15 1200.00 1225.00 RPI @ 1.9%

viii) Copy of Licence N Each 1-Apr-12 25.00 30.00 X The Gambling (Premises Licence Fees) (England and Wales) Regulations 2007 Regulation 13 (2)

(d) Family Entertainment Centres RPI @ 1.9%

i) Premises Licence N Each 1-Apr-15 1200.00 1225.00 RPI @ 1.9%

ii) Annual Fee N Each 1-Apr-15 500.00 515.00 RPI @ 1.9%

iii) Variation of Licence N Each 1-Apr-15 1200.00 1225.00 RPI @ 1.9%

iv) Change of Circumstances N Each 1-Apr-15 40.00 45.00 RPI @ 1.9%

v) Transfer of Licence N Each 1-Apr-15 500.00 515.00 RPI @ 1.9%

vi) Re-instatement Fee N Each 1-Apr-15 500.00 515.00 RPI @ 1.9%

vii) Provisional Statement N Each 1-Apr-15 1200.00 1225.00 RPI @ 1.9%

viii) Copy of Licence N Each 1-Apr-12 25.00 25.00 X The Gambling (Premises Licence Fees) (England and Wales) Regulations 2007 Regulation 13 (2)

(e) Adult Gaming Centre RPI @ 1.9%

i) Premises Licence N Each 1-Apr-15 1200.00 1225.00 RPI @ 1.9%

ii) Annual Fee N Each 1-Apr-15 500.00 515.00 RPI @ 1.9%

iii) Variation of Licence N Each 1-Apr-15 1200.00 1225.00 RPI @ 1.9%

iv) Change of Circumstances N Each 1-Apr-15 40.00 45.00 RPI @ 1.9%

v) Transfer of Licence N Each 1-Apr-15 500.00 515.00 RPI @ 1.9%

vi) Re-instatement Fee N Each 1-Apr-15 500.00 515.00 RPI @ 1.9%

vii) Provisional Statement N Each 1-Apr-15 1200.00 1225.00 RPI @ 1.9%

viii) Copy of Licence N Each 1-Apr-12 25.00 25.00 X The Gambling (Premises Licence Fees) (England and Wales) Regulations 2007 Regulation 13 (2)

(f) Betting Premises (Other) 

i) Temporary Use Notice N Each 7-Jan-07 500.00 500.00 X The Gambling Act 2005 (Temporary Use Notices) Regulations 2007 Regulation 7 (1)

ii) Replacement of Temporary Use Notice N Each 7-Jan-07 25.00 25.00 X The Gambling Act 2005 (Temporary Use Notices) Regulations 2007 Regulation 7 (2) (a)

iii) Premises Licence N Each 1-Apr-15 1200.00 1225.00 RPI @ 1.9%

iv) Annual Fee N Each 1-Apr-15 500.00 515.00 RPI @ 1.9%

v) Variation of Licence N Each 1-Apr-15 1200.00 1225.00 RPI @ 1.9%

vi) Change of Circumstances N Each 1-Apr-15 40.00 45.00 RPI @ 1.9%

vii) Transfer of Licence N Each 1-Apr-15 500.00 515.00 RPI @ 1.9%

viii) Re-instatement Fee N Each 1-Apr-15 500.00 515.00 RPI @ 1.9%

ix) Provisional Statement N Each 1-Apr-15 1200.00 1225.00 RPI @ 1.9%

x) Copy of Licence N Each 1-Apr-12 25.00 25.00 The Gambling (Premises Licence Fees) (England and Wales) Regulations 2007 Regulation 13 (2)

(g) Club Gaming Machine Permits

i) Grant of Permit N Each 1-Sep-07 200.00 200.00 X The Gambling Act 2005 (Club Gaming and Club Machine Permits) Regulations 2007 Regulation 8 (1)

ii) Grant of Permit (Club Premises Certificate holder) N Each 1-Sep-07 100.00 100.00 X The Gambling Act 2005 (Club Gaming and Club Machine Permits) Regulations 2007 Regulation 8 (1) (a) or (b)

iii) Variation of Permit N Each 1-Sep-07 100.00 100.00 X The Gambling Act 2005 (Club Gaming and Club Machine Permits) Regulations 2007 Regulation 15

P
age 9



DESCRIPTION OF CHARGE

V
A

T UNIT

DATE OF 

LAST 

CHANGE
2016/17

£

2017/18

£ E
x

te
rn

a
ll
y

 

S
e

t

Explanation regarding the recommended level of charge

LICENSING AND REGULATORY COMMITTEE

iv) Renewal of Permit N Each 1-Sep-07 200.00 200.00 X The Gambling Act 2005 (Club Gaming and Club Machine Permits) Regulations 2007 Regulation 8 (2) (a)

v) Renewal of Permit (Club Premises Certificate holder) N Each 1-Sep-07 100.00 100.00 X The Gambling Act 2005 (Club Gaming and Club Machine Permits) Regulations 2007 Regulation 8 (2) (b)

vi) Annual Fee N Each 1-Sep-07 50.00 50.00 X The Gambling Act 2005 (Club Gaming and Club Machine Permits) Regulations 2007 Regulation 12

vii) Copy of Permit N Each 1-Sep-07 15.00 15.00 X The Gambling Act 2005 (Club Gaming and Club Machine Permits) Regulations 2007 Regulation 16

(h) Club Gaming Permits

i) Grant of Permit N Each 1-Sep-07 200.00 200.00 X The Gambling Act 2005 (Club Gaming and Club Machine Permits) Regulations 2007 Regulation 8 (1)

ii) Grant of Permit (Club Premises Certificate holder) N Each 1-Sep-07 100.00 100.00 X The Gambling Act 2005 (Club Gaming and Club Machine Permits) Regulations 2007 Regulation 8 (1) (a) or (b)

iii) Variation of Permit N Each 1-Sep-07 100.00 100.00 X The Gambling Act 2005 (Club Gaming and Club Machine Permits) Regulations 2007 Regulation 15

iv) Renewal of Permit N Each 1-Sep-07 200.00 200.00 X The Gambling Act 2005 (Club Gaming and Club Machine Permits) Regulations 2007 Regulation 8 (2) (a) 

v) Renewal of Permit (Club Premises Certificate holder) N Each 1-Sep-07 100.00 100.00 X The Gambling Act 2005 (Club Gaming and Club Machine Permits) Regulations 2007 Regulation 8 (2) (b)

vi) Annual Fee N Each 1-Sep-07 50.00 50.00 X The Gambling Act 2005 (Club Gaming and Club Machine Permits) Regulations 2007 Regulation 12

vii) Copy of Permit N Each 1-Sep-07 15.00 15.00 X The Gambling Act 2005 (Club Gaming and Club Machine Permits) Regulations 2007 Regulation 16

(i) Family Entertainment Centre Permits

i) Grant of Permit N Each 1-Sep-07 300.00 300.00 X The Gambling Act 2005 (Family Entertainment Centre Gaming Machine) (Permits) Regulations 2007 Reg 3 (a)

ii) Renewal of Permit N Each 1-Sep-07 300.00 300.00 X The Gambling Act 2005 (Family Entertainment Centre Gaming Machine) (Permits) Regulations 2007 Reg 3 (c)

iii) Change of Name on Permit N Each 1-Sep-07 25.00 25.00 X The Gambling Act 2005 (Family Entertainment Centre Gaming Machine) (Permits) Regulations 2007 Reg 5

iv) Copy of Permit N Each 1-Sep-07 15.00 15.00 X The Gambling Act 2005 (Family Entertainment Centre Gaming Machine) (Permits) Regulations 2007 Reg 6

(j) Prize Gaming Permits

i) Grant of Permit N Each 1-Sep-07 300.00 300.00 X The Gambling Act 2005 (Prize Gaming) (Permits) Regulations 2007 Regulation 3 (a)

ii) Renewal of Permit N Each 1-Sep-07 300.00 300.00 X The Gambling Act 2005 (Prize Gaming) (Permits) Regulations 2007 Regulation 3 (c)

iii) Change of Name on Permit N Each 1-Sep-07 25.00 25.00 X The Gambling Act 2005 (Prize Gaming) (Permits) Regulations 2007 Regulation 5

iv) Copy of Permit N Each 1-Sep-07 15.00 15.00 X The Gambling Act 2005 (Prize Gaming) (Permits) Regulations 2007 Regulation 6

(k) Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits

i) Grant of Permit N Each 1-Sep-07 150.00 155.00 X The Gambling Act 2005 (Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits) (England and Wales) Regulations 2007 Reg 3 (a) (ii)

ii) Variation of Permit N Each 1-Sep-07 100.00 115.00 X The Gambling Act 2005 (Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits) (England and Wales) Regulations 2007 Reg 3 (b)

iii) Change of Name on Permit N Each 1-Sep-07 25.00 30.00 X The Gambling Act 2005 (Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits) (England and Wales) Regulations 2007 Reg 8

iv) Copy of Permit N Each 1-Sep-07 15.00 20.00 X The Gambling Act 2005 (Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits) (England and Wales) Regulations 2007 Reg 9

v) Transfer of Permit N Each 1-Sep-07 25.00 30.00 X The Gambling Act 2005 (Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits) (England and Wales) Regulations 2007 Reg 3 (c)

vi) Automatic Entitlement Notification N Each 1-Sep-07 50.00 55.00 X The Gaming Machines in Alcohol Licensed Premises (Notification fee) (England and Wales) Regulations 2007 Reg 3

VAT Key

I Inclusive of VAT

E Exempt from VAT

N Non Business Activity

Z Zero-rated VAT

P
age 10



Appendix 2 - Statistical Data for Food 
Hygiene Inspections (2016/17)

To be tabled at the meeting.

Page 11



 

 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Statement of Licensing Policy 
2015-2020 

Page 12



 

 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Part 1 Introduction 3 

Part 2 The role of this Policy 3 

Part 3 Licensable activities 3 

Part 4 Sale and supply of alcohol 4 

Part 5 Regulated entertainment 4 

Part 6 Late night refreshment 4 

Part 7 Carrying out licensable activities 5 

Part 8 Types of authorisation 5 

Part 9 Premises Licences 6 

Part 10 Club Premises Certificates 6 

Part 11 Temporary Event Notices 7 

Part 12 Personal Licences 8 

Part 13 Designated Premises Supervisor 8 

Part 14 Application process 9 

Part15  Operating Schedule  11 

Part 16 Representations 12 

Part 17 Determining and granting applications 13 

Part 18 Conditions 14 

Part 19 Mandatory Conditions 15 

Part 20 Alternative Mandatory Condition 15 

Part 21 Annual Fees 15 

Part 22 Suspension of premises licences and club premises certificates 16 

Part 23 Other applications 16 

Part 24 Responsible Authorities and the licensing objectives 17 

Part 25 Steps to promote the licensing objectives 18 

Part 26 Reviews of premises licences 22 

Part 27 Early Morning Restriction Orders 23 

Part 28 Late Night Levy 24 

Part 29 Cumulative Impact 25 

Part 30 Special Policy on Cumulative Impact 27 

Part 31 Other Regulatory Regimes 28 

Part 32 Delegation of Functions 30 

Part 33 Enforcement 31 

Part 34 Duration and Review of Policy 32 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Contents 

Page 13



 

 3 

 
 

 
Oadby and Wigston Borough Council (“the Council”) is the Licensing Authority under the 
Licensing Act 2003 (“the Act”) for the Borough of Oadby and Wigston (“the Borough”). 
 
The Act came into force on 24 November 2005 and merged six separate licensing regimes 
into one Act (alcohol, entertainment, cinemas, theatres, late night refreshment houses and 
night café). 

 
The Licensing Authority is under a duty to carry out its functions under the Act with a view 
to promoting the four Licensing Objectives: 
 

 The prevention of crime and disorder 

 Public safety 

 The prevention of public nuisance 

 The protection of children from harm 
 

When making decisions to grant, refuse, revoke or add conditions to Licences the Act 
requires the Licensing Authority to have regard to: 
 

 its own Statement of Licensing Policy (this “Policy”) 

 guidance issued by the Secretary of State 
 
 
 
 

 
The Licensing Authority is required by Section 5 of the Act to determine and publish a 
Statement of Licensing Policy every five years and to have regard to it when determining 
applications made under the Act. 
 
This policy will: 
 

 be used as a guide by members of the Licensing Authority in their decision making 

 inform applicants about how applications will be considered  

 inform applicants of the expectations the Licensing Authority will have of them 

 inform residents and local businesses about how applications are considered and 
how they can engage in the Licensing process 

 be used to support decisions made by the Licensing Authority should its decisions 
be challenged 

 
 
 
 
 

There are three broad categories of licensable activity under the Act.  
 

 The sale and/or supply of alcohol. 

 The provision of regulated entertainment. 

 The provision of late night refreshment. 

PART 1: Introduction 
 
 

PART 3: Licensable Activities 

PART 2:  The role of this Policy 

Page 14



 

 4 

 
 
 
A licence is needed for alcohol to be sold by retail from any premises whether or not 
that alcohol is sold for consumption off the premises, on the premises or both. 
 
The sale by retail of alcohol requires two forms of permission, a premises licence for 
the premises and an individual holding a personal licence to authorise the sale of 
alcohol. One individual holding a personal licence must be named on the licence as 
the designated premises supervisor. 
 
The supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a members club to, or to the order of, a 
member of that club requires only a club premises certificate.  
 
 
 
 
 
A number of entertainment activities are regulated by the Act. These are: 
 

 The performance of a play 

 The exhibition of a film 

 Indoor sporting events 

 The provision of live music 

 The provision of recorded music 

 Boxing, wrestling or mixed martial arts 

 Performance of dance 
 

Exempt entertainment 
 
There a number of exemptions as to when entertainment is deemed not to be 
regulated under the Act and does not require a licence. Individuals and businesses 
should ensure that they are aware of all the legislative requirements that apply to an 
exemption and can evidence that any exempt entertainment is carried out in 
accordance with them.  The person providing the activity should take their own legal 
advice before providing an activity if they are unsure if it requires a licence or not. 
 
 
 
 
 
The provision of hot food and the provision of hot drink is licensable between the 
hours of 23:00 and 05:00. This means that during these times a number of 
businesses such as restaurants, take-aways, hotels and bars will require a licence. 
 
The Licensing Authority has no ability to regulate activities relating to the provision of 
hot food and drink outside of the above times. 
 
Conditions attached to a premises licence that authorises late night refreshment will 
only apply to the provision of hot food and drink between the hours of 23:00 and 
05:00.  

PART 4: Sale and / or Supply of Alcohol 

PART 5: Regulated Entertainment 

PART 6: Late Night Refreshment 

Page 15



 

 5 

 
 
 
 
It is the position of the Licensing Authority that persons carrying out licensable 
activities do so in full knowledge and understanding of the legal requirements. The 
onus is on the businesses or individuals carrying out the activities to make 
appropriate enquiries as to whether or not they need an authorisation from the 
Licensing Authority before they carry out that activity.  
 
Where an authorisation is held the Licensing Authority expects that the licence or 
certificate holder or the premises user understands how to comply with the terms of it 
and the legislation it is granted under or will have sought advice from the Licensing 
Authority on how to comply. 
 
This Policy is available from the Council Offices and its website and is the primary 
source of information provided by the Council as to the Act and its application in the 
Borough. It is expected that before carrying out any licensable activity individuals and 
businesses will have consulted this Policy and if unsure will have asked relevant 
questions in writing of the Licensing Authority. 
 
This Policy is not, and cannot be, a thorough examination and explanation of the Act, 
its regulations and the various decisions that have been and will in the future be 
made on the interpretation of the Act by the Courts. Applicants and businesses are 
encouraged to obtain their own separate and independent legal advice where they 
believe it is necessary. 
 
 
 
 
 
There are four types of authorisations for licensable activities: 

 

 Premises licences 

 Club premises certificates 

 Temporary event notices  

 Personal licences 
 

All licensable activities will require an authorisation for the premises from which those 
activities are provided on or carried out from and this can be authorised by a 
premises licence, club premises certificate or temporary event notice.   
 
The Act provides for a two-tiered licensing system where the licensable activity 
involves the sale by retail of alcohol (namely premises licences and personal 
licences).  
 
A personal licence is required where the sale of alcohol is provided from a premises 
authorised to sell alcohol under a premises licence. In such cases a personal licence 
holder must be named on the premises licence as the Designated Premises 
Supervisor (DPS). 
 

PART 7: Carrying out licensable activities 
 
 

PART 8: Types of Authorisations  

Page 16



 

 6 

A personal licence holder is not required to authorise the sales of alcohol from 
premises that hold a club premises certificate or from premises carrying out activities 
under a Temporary Event Notice provided that the alcohol is sold or supplied in 
accordance with that authorisation.  
 
The permissions are explained further below. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Premises licences are the most common type of authorisation for licensable activities 
and are necessary for businesses such as pubs, nightclubs, supermarkets, off- 
licences, restaurants, take-aways, hotels, theatres, cinemas and many other types of 
premises. 

The Act allows for any person who uses or carries on a business from a premises to 
apply for a premises licence, whether it is an individual partnership or company. 
Additionally a number of other legal entities including a recognised members club, 
charity, educational and health institutions may apply.  

A premises licence can authorise all types of licensable activities other than the 
supply of alcohol under member’s clubs conditions which can only be authorised by a 
club premises certificate. 
 
Additionally a provisional premises licence can be applied for in certain instances, 
such as when the applicant is not in a position to use a premises for licensed 
purposes (i.e. it is yet to be built) but wishes to ensure that he can get the appropriate 
permission. 
 
 
 
 
 
Club premises certificates (“CPC’s”) are similar to a premises licence but can only be 
applied for by, and granted to, qualifying clubs. These are, ordinarily, traditional 
working men’s clubs and institutes that are governed by club rules.  
 
The key difference between such clubs and other businesses or individuals that 
require a licence, is that the members of the club collectively own and hold the 
possessions of the club. Alcohol, therefore, is not sold but supplied to members. 
 
The holding of a CPC means that the club does not require a personal licence holder 
to be present or to be named on the premises licence as the DPS as the members of 
the club share the responsibility for any offences committed. 
 
There are more restrictions and limitations imposed on a CPC than a premises 
licence. A qualifying club must have at least 25 members at all times, it cannot admit 
non-members to the premises unless as a bona fide guest of a member, and new 
members cannot be supplied with alcohol unless 48 hours have elapsed since their 

PART 9: Premises Licences 

PART 10: Club Premises Certificates 
 

Page 17



 

 7 

application to become a member was approved by the Club. The Club must also 
have and maintain club rules that comply with the requirements of the Act.  
 
A members club is permitted to apply for and hold a premises licence, rather than a 
CPC if they wish, but only a members club can hold a CPC. 
 
 
 
 
 
A Temporary Event Notice (TEN) allows licensable activities to be carried out on a 
temporary basis without the applicant applying for a permanent permission such as a 
premises licence or club premises certificate. 
 
Despite using the term “event” the Act does not require an actual event to take place 
or be intended in order for the authorisation to be applied for. TEN’s can be used for 
a variety of instances such as a local park fete, the sale of wine at a church gathering 
or for extending the hours of premises licence. 
 
A TEN is simply a notice given by an individual who signs to state that they will be 
responsible for providing licensable activities on the occasion stated. The Notice 
must be served in accordance with strict statutory timescales, on the Licensing 
Authority, the Police and the Council’s Environmental Health Team.   
 
The Licensing Authority does not approve or grant a validly given notice but simply 
acknowledges that it has been received. 
 
If the notice is not served correctly and within the prescribed timescales it is invalid. 
The Licensing Authority is not under a duty to inform the person who served the 
notice that it is invalid. It is the responsibility of the person giving the notice to ensure 
that they have served it correctly and are authorised to carry out the licensable 
activities they require before they do so.  
 
If the notice served exceeds the permitted requirements of the Act the Licensing 
Authority is required to serve a ‘Counter Notice’ on the notice giver. These permitted 
requirements are amended from time to time but relate the number of notices that 
can be given to an individual not holding a personal licence, the number of notices 
that can be given by a personal licence holder, the period of time that one notice can 
cover and the number of notices that can be given in respect of one premises 
licence. 
 
Carrying out licensable activities without an authorisation is a criminal offence that 
can result in a custodial sentence and/or a substantial fine.  
 
A TEN must be served on the Licensing Authority, Police and Environmental Health 
at least 10 clear working days before the day of the event. “Clear working days” does 
not include the date the notice was given nor the day of the event. 
 
If an objection is made against the application by the Police or Environmental Health 
the Council is required to hold a hearing.   
 

PART 11: Temporary Event Notices 
 

Page 18



 

 8 

The Act also provides for a “Late TEN” to be given with 5 clear working days notice. 
However, if either the Police or Environmental Health object to the notice the event 
cannot go ahead and the person who served the notice has no right of appeal. 
 
The Licensing Authority recommends that as much notice as possible is given as this 
allows for any errors or omissions to be rectified.  
 
 
 
 
 
All sales of alcohol under the Act must either be made or authorised by a personal 
licence holder. 
 
Any person over the age of 18 may apply to the Council for a personal licence if they 
are ordinarily resident in the Borough and have successfully passed the relevant 
statutory qualification. 
 
An Applicant must submit the prescribed application form to the Licensing Authority 
along with their qualification certificate, two endorsed passport photographs and a 
basic disclosure criminal record certificate dated within a calendar month of their 
application. There are no exceptions to this statutory provision.  
 
Where an individual has submitted a valid application and has no relevant 
convictions shown on their basic disclosure the Licensing Authority is required by the 
Act to automatically grant their application. 
 
Where an individual has been convicted of a relevant offence the Licensing Authority 
must notify the police of the application. The Police will then have the opportunity to 
object to the grant of the licence and if they do so a hearing will be convened in order 
to determine the application. Relevant offences are prescribed in regulations and 
vary from time to time.  
 
Those who hold a personal licence and work in licensed premises are expected to be 
fully up to date with the Act and remain so throughout the holding of their licence. 
The Licensing Authority will expect personal licence holders to undergo regular 
training on their duties and the Act.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
The designated premises supervisor (DPS) is an important role created by the Act 
and applies only when a premises licence authorises the sale and/or supply of 
alcohol.  In order to be able sell or supply alcohol from the premises an individual 
holding a personal licence must be named on the premises licence as the DPS. This 
is because all sales of alcohol must be made or at least authorised by a personal 
licence holder and gives certainty to the responsible authorities that a personal 
licence holder will be at the premises. 
 

PART 12: Personal Licences 
 

PART 13: Designated Premises Supervisor 
 

Page 19



 

 9 

There can only be one DPS named on the licence although more than one personal 
licence holder can work and authorise sales from the premises.  The Licensing 
Authority recommend that all premises have more than one personal licence holder 
employed to ensure appropriate cover for annual leave and sickness. 
 
The DPS is only required to hold a personal licence and consent to being named on 
the premises licence. The Act places no further obligation on the DPS to either be at 
the premises, to manage the premises or to authorise the sale of alcohol.  It is 
permissible for the DPS to simply be a figurehead named on the licence and for 
another personal licence holder to be employed to authorise the sale of alcohol. 
 
However, the intention of the role of the DPS, as expressed by the Governments 
guidance, is that the person in day to day control of the premises should be named 
on the licence as a contact point for all authorities and bears a level of individual 
responsibility for the activities carried out from the premises. Normally this will be the 
manager of the premises. 
 
The expectation of the Licensing Authority is that the DPS will be a responsible 
person and will ensure that the provision of all licensable activities from the premises 
do not undermine the licensing objectives. The DPS should take the lead on training 
and authorising other members of staff in their duties under the Act and ensure that 
the terms and conditions of the premises licence and the Act are complied with. 
 
The Licensing Authority expects that the DPS will take regular training and remain up 
to date with the Act and other applicable legislation affecting their role of 
responsibility. The Licensing Authority would be concerned, should its discretion be 
engaged, that a DPS has not continued with a course of regular training unless 
satisfied that the DPS has exceptional experience that makes such training 
unnecessary. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Before applying for a licence or certificate it is recommended that potential applicants 
ensure that they are familiar with this Policy and discuss their application with the 
responsible authorities who are able to advise them on the measures that they would 
expect to see offered in their application.  References to a premises licence in this 
part of the Policy should also be taken as including club premises certificates as the 
process is largely the same. 
 
The statutory process for applying for a premises licence can take some time and 
must be followed by applicants carefully. If the application is not made and advertised 
as prescribed by the regulations the application will be deemed invalid and the 
Licensing Authority will be unable to grant the licence. 
 
Applicants are therefore advised to consider carefully the statutory process and seek 
their own independent legal advice.  

 
 

PART 14:  Application Process for premises licences and 
  club premises certificates 

Page 20



 

 10 

The application form 
 
Applications must be on a prescribed form and be accompanied by the statutory fee. 
The application form, known as an operating schedule, must be accompanied by a 
plan of the premises (in the statutory prescribed form) and if the sale or supply of 
alcohol will be a licensable activity a form of consent from the proposed DPS must be 
submitted. Clubs applying for a CPC will not require a DPS consent form but will 
instead need to provide a copy of their club rules to prove that they are a qualifying 
club under the Act. 
 
The Applicant must complete the relevant application form correctly. If the application 
form is not completed correctly the application may be rejected as invalid. Where 
there are very minor omissions or mistakes within an application form that in the 
opinion of the relevant Licensing Officer do not affect the consideration of the 
application by other responsible authorities or other persons, the Licensing Officer 
will allow the application to be amended.  
 
For example, spelling mistakes, address errors and other inconsequential matters will 
be allowed to be corrected rather than resulting in rejection. 
 
The Applicant is required to state the steps proposed to be taken to promote the 
licensing objectives. The failure to do this for a new premises licence application will 
result in the application being rejected. Where a variation application has been 
submitted the applicant may chose not to state any further steps and rely on those 
already conditioned to the licence – it is however recommend that the applicant 
makes this intention clear to avoid representations. Further details about promoting 
the objectives follow. 
 
If the application includes the sale of alcohol a consent form signed by the proposed 
DPS must also be provided. If at the time of the application the proposed DPS does 
not hold a personal licence (for instance he or she is in the process of applying for it) 
the application will still be valid. However if the licence is granted no sale of alcohol 
will be able to be made until the DPS has been granted their personal licence. 
 
The applicant must also provide a plan of the premises that he wishes to licence in 
accordance with the regulations.  If a plan does not accord with the regulations the 
application will be invalid.  The regulations vary from time to time but are available 
from the Council or the Governments website. 
 

Service of applications 
 
An applicant is required to serve his application on the statutory responsible 
authorities. All responsible authorities must be given a copy of the application on the 
same day that the Licensing Authority is served with the application. The 28 day 
representation period cannot begin until all responsible authorities have a copy of the 
application. 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 21



 

 11 

Representation Period 
 
Once an application has been made there will be a period of 28 days in which 
representations can be made either in support of or against an application. The 
application must be advertised by the applicant to start this period. 
 

Advertising the application 
 
The process of advertising the application is designed to bring the application to the 
attention of persons that may be affected by it, such as local residents and local 
businesses – known in the Act as “other persons”. 
 
The Applicant is required to advertise his application in two ways. Firstly the applicant 
must display a blue notice on or near the premises in the prescribed form.  Where the 
premises to be licensed are set back from the public highway, obscured or situated 
within private grounds, the applicant must place a blue notice on the nearest public 
highway. 
 
The Applicant is also required to advertise the making of the application in a local 
newspaper that circulates in the area on one working day, within the first 10 working 
days of the application being given to the Licensing Authority.  
 
It is expected that the Applicant will ensure that he makes every effort to bring an 
application to the attention of other persons by displaying the blue notice in an 
appropriate position. 
 

Invalid advertising 
 
If the Licensing Authority is not satisfied that the application has been advertised 
correctly in accordance with the regulations the application will be deemed invalid 
and rejected. In most cases, rather then return the application, the Licensing 
Authority will simply request that the applicant re-advertises the application in the 
correct manner and the 28 day representation period will begin again. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The operating schedule is a mandatory requirement of a premises licence application 
and the prescribed form allows the applicant to detail this.  It will include details such 
as descriptive information about the premises, the proposed licensable activities, 
details of any risks associated with the location or size of the premises, and the times 
that the proposed licensable activities will occur. Importantly the Applicant must also 
state the steps that will be taken to promote the licensing objectives. 
 
Stating the steps that will be taken to promote the licensing objectives is the 
Applicants opportunity to show the responsible authorities and other persons who 
may have concerns that they have considered carefully the provision of the proposed 
activities and there impact on the local area and can prevent the licensing objectives 
from being undermined. 

PART 15: Operating schedule – 
 steps to promote the licensing objectives 

Page 22



 

 12 

The measures offered in the operating scheduled will be translated into conditions on 
the premises licence and will therefore be binding on the Applicant should the licence 
be granted. 
 
An incomplete or inadequate operating schedule is likely to result in representations 
being made against the application and will either delay the grant of the licence or 
result in its refusal. 
 
It is recommended that before submitting an application the Applicant considers very 
carefully what they propose to do and discuss their application with the responsible 
authorities prior to making it.  
 
It is expected that Applicants will outline clear steps within their operating schedule 
as to the measures that they will take to promote the licensing objectives.  
Responsible Authorities will rightly have concerns where it appears to them that the 
Applicant wishes to be considered responsible enough to be licensed to provide 
licensable activities but cannot take the time to think carefully about the implications 
of them doing so. 
 
 
. 
 
 
During the 28 day representation period responsible authorities and other persons 
may write to the Licensing Authority either objecting to or supporting the application. 
A valid representation must be made in writing and within the 28 day representation 
period and the representation must relate to the affect of the application on the 
licensing objectives. 
 
Representations may suggest conditions or actions that may be taken to remedy the 
concern. Responsible authorities will have received a copy of the application and will 
be able to consider more carefully the application made. Persons other than the 
responsible authorities will not normally have seen the application just the blue notice 
displayed at the premises or the advert in the local newspaper. It is therefore 
recommended that before a representation is made the application is viewed either at 
the Council Offices, or, if available, on the Council’s website. 
 
Applicants should note that their application is a public document and may be shown 
to other members of the public and may be viewed on the Council website.  
 
The Act permits the Council to ignore representations that are in its opinion vexatious 
or frivolous.   
 
Persons who submit a representation against an application should be aware that the 
applicant has a right to see these representations under the Act as they are 
submitted against the grant of an application that the applicant is legally entitled to 
apply for and be granted. In rare instances a person submitting a request can 
express a wish to remain anonymous and the Council will consider this request in 
line with the Governments guidance. If the Council determine that it will not permit a 
person to be anonymous it will advise the individual and give them the opportunity to 

PART 16: Representations 

Page 23



 

 13 

either confirm that they wish the objection to be treated as a relevant representation 
under the Act and provided to the applicant or to withdraw their representation. 
 
Decisions on whether or not a representation is valid in accordance with the 
Licensing Act 2003 will be made by the appropriate Officer dealing with the 
application in consultation, where necessary, with the relevant advice from the Head 
of Corporate Resources. 
 
 
 
 
  
Where there has not been any representations made against an application the Act 
provides that the Licensing Authority must grant the application. The application will 
be granted on the terms applied for and subject to the mandatory licensing conditions 
prescribed by regulations and the measures offered in the applicants Operating 
Schedule. 
 
Where relevant representations have been submitted and are not resolved between 
the applicant and the objector the Act requires the Licensing Authority to hold a 
hearing within statutory timescales. 
 
If a representation is submitted by a responsible authority or other person outlining 
concerns about the application but suggests steps or conditions that can be taken by 
the Applicant to resolve those concerns the Licensing Authority will permit the 
Applicant to amend their operating schedule to incorporate the proposed suggestions 
or conditions.  If the responsible authority or other person is content and withdraws 
their representation and both parties agree a hearing is not necessary the application 
will be determined by the Licensing Authority without a hearing.   
 
It is considered that the above is the most sensible and efficient way to promote the 
licensing objectives and is the least inconvenient and cost effective method  of giving 
action to Parliaments intention.  
 
The Licensing Authority will not however allow an applicant to amend their Operating 
Schedule to place them in a better position than that which has been advertised or 
which is likely to affect other persons differently than that advertised. 
 
The hearing process allows the Council to consider the application and 
representations that have been made and determine the application on its individual 
merits in order to promote the licensing objectives. 
 
Hearings will normally be heard before a sub-committee of Councils Licensing and 
Regulatory Committee. The Council has published a Code of Practice for Licensing 
Hearings, which explains how hearings will be held and should be referred to for 
further details.  
 
When making decisions at a hearing the sub-committee will do so as permitted by 
the Act and based on the individual merits of the application, having had regard to 
this policy and the Governments guidance and giving due consideration to the 
representations submitted.  

PART 17: Determining and granting Applications 
 

Page 24



 

 14 

 
Any person who has made a representation and the applicant are invited to the 
hearing and can, if they chose, be represented by any of their choosing whether 
legally qualified or not. 
 
It is not mandatory for those who have applied for a licence or those who have 
submitted a representation in respect of one to attend a hearing. However, the 
Licensing Authority assume that those who have engaged the statutory process and 
who have been notified in writing of the date and time of the hearing within the 
statutory timescales have had sufficient opportunity to attend and the Council will in 
most cases decide to hold the hearing in their absence. 
 
 

 
 
 
Conditions on premises licences are necessary to promote the licensing objectives 
and will be attached to premises licences and club premises certificates by one of the 
following methods: 
 
 

 A mandatory condition imposed under the Act  

 A condition offered in the applicants operating schedule 

 Following a licensing sub-committee hearing  

 Following a review hearing  

 
The mandatory conditions are set by the Home Secretary and may be amended and 
added to from time to time.  
 
These conditions apply to all licence holders specified within the mandatory 
conditions. Where the Home Secretary makes changes to the mandatory conditions 
after the grant of a licence, it is for the licence holder to ensure compliance with those 
conditions. Unless instructed by legislation to do so, the Licensing Authority are not 
obliged to inform licence holders of any changes to the mandatory conditions.  
 
Applicants should be aware that the Licensing Authority is required to attach 
conditions to a licence that are consistent with the applicants operating schedule.  
 
When the discretion of the Licensing Authority has been engaged by the making of a 
relevant representation or by the application to review a premises licence the 
relevant sub-committee determining the application may attach such conditions to the 
licence which it deems appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.  
 
The Licensing Authority will however ensure that all conditions placed on a licence 
once its discretion has been engaged are tailored to the individual characteristics of 
the premises to be licensed and based upon the merits of that application and the 
representations received in respect of that application.  
 
The Act is not the primary mechanism for the general control of nuisance, crime and 

PART 18: Conditions 
 

Page 25



 

 15 

anti-social behaviour by individuals once they are beyond the direct control of the 
individual, club or business holding the licence. No condition will be attached to a 
licence requiring a licence holder to resolve issues beyond their control. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Sections 19 and 19A of the Act imposes mandatory conditions on all premises 
licences and club premises certificates.  
 
These will be included on a premises licence or club premises certificate where 
granted. These conditions may be varied altered or changed at the discretion of the 
Secretary State.  
 
The Licensing Authority has no ability to remove or alter these conditions or any 
obligation to advise licence holders of any changes made to them by the Secretary of 
State.  It is expected that premises licence holders who wish to carry out and provide 
licensable activities are responsible enough to comply with their duties to comply with 
these conditions and remain up to date on them and any changes to them. 
 
 
 
 
 

The 'alternative mandatory condition' applies only to a premises licence and permits 
a licence holder or applicant for a licence, in respect of a community premises to 
replace the mandatory requirement of the DPS with the alternative condition that the 
supply of alcohol will be made or authorised by a management committee instead.  

This can be applied for at the time of a new premises licence or by submitting a 
variation application.  

 

 

All holders of a premises licence or CPC are required to pay a statutory prescribed 
fee each year on the anniversary of the issue date of their premises licence or CPC. 
The fee is based on the rateable value of the premises and is set by the Government 
through the regulations that are issued under the Act.  

Under the regulations premises that have a high rateable value and that are primarily 
used for the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises are required to pay 
either double or triple their prescribed annual fee. 

The payment of the annual fee is a statutory requirement and an obligation on the 
licence holder. The Licensing Authority are not responsible for reminding licence 
holders of their statutory duty to pay their annual fee. 

PART 19: Mandatory Conditions 
 

PART 20: Alternative mandatory condition  

PART 21: Annual Fees 
 

Page 26



 

 16 

 

Where the holder of a premises licence or CPC does not pay their annual fee the 
Licensing Authority must suspend that premises licence or CPC.  The Licensing 
Authority will not suspend the licence or CPC until the statutory grace period of 21 
days after the date the fee was due has elapsed and before suspending the licence 
or CPC will serve a notice on the licence or certificate holder giving at least 2 working 
days notice of the suspension. 

Should a premises licence or CPC holder dispute the annual fee that is due they 
must inform the Licensing Authority in writing before the date on which the fee is due. 

Continuing to trade after a premises licence or CPC has been suspended is a 
criminal offence and will result in a prosecution.  The holder of a licence or certificate 
who is prosecuted for carrying out activities whilst a licence is suspended may in 
addition, or as an alternative to a prosecution, have their premises licence reviewed. 

 
 
 
 
There are a number of other applications that may be served in respect of premises 
licences (and CPC’s). 

Minor Variation 
 
The Minor variations procedure under Section 41A of the Act allows small changes to 
be made to a premises licence after it has been granted. 
 
Minor variations may be suitable for small changes such as the alteration of plans 
where small refurbishment has taken place, the removal of conditions, addition of 
conditions, removal of licensable activities or the alteration of hours or addition of 
activities (in certain circumstances). 
 
The Licensing Authority will not accept as a minor variation any application to remove 
conditions imposed by the Licensing Authority within the preceding two years unless 
satisfied that the reason(s) those conditions were imposed in the first place are no 
longer appropriate due to a change in style or management of the premises. 
 
The Act prevents the Licensing Authority from accepting as a minor variation any 
application to extend the hours in which alcohol can be sold within, or to amend the 
hours that alcohol can be sold between the hours of 23:00 and 07:00.  
 
The applicant must advertise a minor variation by placing a notice on their premises 
for 10 working days and the Licensing Authority must determine the application within 
15 days. Upon receipt of a minor variation application the relevant Licensing Officer 
will determine whether the application is suitable for variation, and if so, will consult 
with any responsible authority they feel appropriate. If the Licensing Officer believes 
that the granting of the application could undermine the licensing objectives the 
application will be rejected. 
 

 

PART 23: Other Applications 
 

PART 22: Suspension of Licences and Club Premises 
 Certificates where annual fee is not paid 

Page 27



 

 17 

Full Variations 
 

Any changes that are required to be made to a premises licence that are not minor or 
do not relate the change of a DPS will be required to be submitted as a major 
variation. The process for this is the same as applying for a new premises licence or 
CPC. 

Transfer of Premises Licence 
 
Premises licences may be transferred from the premises licence holder to another 
person upon the application of that person. The applicant will need to obtain the 
premises licence and the consent of the existing premises licence holder in order to 
make the application and be in position to use the premises for licensable activities. 
 
Where the consent of the premises licence holder cannot be obtained the Licensing 
Authority may exempt the applicant from the requirement if the applicant can satisfy 
the authority that he has taken all reasonable steps to do so.  
 
The Police may object to an application in exceptional circumstances where they 
believe that the granting of the licence will undermine the licensing objectives of the 
prevention of crime and disorder. 
 

Variation of Designated Premises Supervisor 
 
Whilst on a number of occasions the DPS will be the same person as the premises 
licence holder on others the DPS will simply be an employee and may be changed 
regularly. The premises licence holder is therefore able to submit an application to 
replace the DPS named on the licence with another person providing that other 
person holds a personal licence and consents to being named as the DPS.  
 
The Police may object to an application in exceptional circumstances where they 
believe that the granting of the licence will undermine the licensing objective 
prevention of crime and disorder. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Licensing Authority is required to carry out its functions under the Act with a view 
to promoting the licensing objectives. The Licensing Authority also expects that 
holders of premises licences, personal licences, club premises certificates and those 
who have given Temporary Event Notices to actively promote the four licensing 
objectives. 
 
Where the discretion of the Licensing Authority is engaged and it is considering 
whether to grant an application for a licence or certificate, to revoke a licence or 
certificate or to add conditions to a licence or a certificate the Licensing Authority will 
consider carefully the evidence before it. 
 
 
 

PART 24: Responsible Authorities and the Licensing 
 Objectives 
 

Page 28



 

 18 

Licensing Objective - Prevention of crime and disorder  
 

The Licensing Authority expects that on issues of Crime and Disorder the 
Leicestershire Police will be the primary source of information and evidence that the 
objectives will be undermined.   
 

Licensing Objective - Public safety 
 

The Licensing Authority expects that on issues of public safety the primary 
responsible authorities will be the Leicestershire Fire and Rescue Service and the 
Councils Environmental Health team.  
 

Licensing Objective - Prevention of public nuisance 
 

It is expected that the primary responsible authority that will deal with public nuisance 
concerns is the Councils Environmental Health Team. However it is also 
acknowledged that the Councils Planning Team may also have concerns or evidence 
about the affect of licensed premises on the amenity of its local area. 
 

Licensing Objective - Protection of children from harm 
 

The Leicestershire Police are also the responsible authority that take the lead on 
child protection issues within the Borough and will be the primary source of evidence 
for concerns in this regard. It is also noted that the Leicestershire Trading Standards 
Service are the primary authority for dealing with the sale and supply of alcohol to 
under age persons from Off Licences within the Borough. 
 
Whilst the above sets out who the Licensing Authority expect and acknowledge as 
being the appropriate authority for responding to applications and providing evidence 
under the above four objectives it does not stop any other responsible authority or 
other person raising issues under any of the objectives and providing evidence to the 
Licensing Authority.  
 
In the absence of any evidence the Licensing Authority will ordinarily assume that 
where the primary responsible authority for relevant objective above has not raised 
concerns there is on the balance of probabilities likely not to be any. 
 
The Licensing Authority is also a responsible authority in its own right and able to 
object to applications and review premises licences and CPC’s. The Licensing 
Authority will not however use these powers where they should rightly be exercised 
by one of the above responsible authorities unless it considers it appropriate to do 
so. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Licence applications should be accompanied by an Operating Schedule that includes 
the steps that the licensee proposes to take to promote the 4 licensing objectives.  

PART 25:  Possible steps to promote the Licensing 
 Objectives 
 

Page 29



 

 19 

The Licensing Authority strongly recommends that the process of developing the 
operating schedule includes a thorough risk assessment with regard to the licensing 
objectives, which will assist in identifying those steps. 
 
Applicants for licences are urged to discuss their proposals with the responsible 
authorities prior to submitting an application.  This will enable them to seek advice on 
the production of their operating schedule and may avoid the need for a hearing in 
response to representations made by the authorities.   

 
Examples as to the steps that may be required by the above authorities to promote 
the licensing objectives and which may reduce objections to applications follow 
below.  
 
 It is for the applicant to decide which of these are appropriate for inclusion in their 
operating schedule for the premises, based on the exact circumstances involved.  
The Licensing Authority can only impose conditions that have been offered in the 
operating schedule of an application, or following a hearing in which the Authority has 
agreed with a representation.  If the licensing application complies with all other legal 
requirements, and there are no relevant representations, then the Licensing Authority 
must grant the application.   

 
The Prevention of Crime and Disorder 

 
Closed Circuit Television (CCTV) 
 
CCTV cameras can be an important means of deterring and detecting crime at, and 
immediately outside, licensed premises. The Licensing Authority will therefore 
support the provision of CCTV in town centre premises including take-away’s or 
restaurants open late at night. The CCTV should be installed and maintained on the 
advice of the Leicestershire Police Crime Prevention Officer. 
 
Glassware 
 
Parts of the Borough are the subject of a street drinking ban and to support this, the 
Licensing Authority considers it appropriate for town centre premises to adopt a 
policy of prohibiting open containers of alcohol being taken from the premises.  This 
approach will also prevent the use of these containers as offensive weapons. In 
certain circumstances polycarbonate glasses may be sensible, such as where there 
are incidents of violence or events are held which make it dangerous to use glass. 
 
Irresponsible sales 
 
Mandatory conditions prevent the holding of irresponsible drink promotions from 
licensed premises. The Licensing Authority expect the management of licensed 
premises to be responsible and not to sell alcohol to those who are already drunk or 
to engage in promotions that will encourage excessive drinking.  
Premises licensed to sell alcohol for consumption off the premises should ensure that 
their promotions do not fall below the mandatory condition specifying minimum prices 
and do not market their alcohol in a way that encourages bulk buying or purchases 
by children.  
 

Page 30



 

 20 

Drugs 
 
The Licensing Authority expects all premises licensed within the Borough to have a 
firm anti-drugs policy and to report all suspected drug related activity to the Police.  
 
Door Staff 
 
The use of Security Industry Authority (SIA) registered door staff can assist licence 
holders in controlling entry into its premises, verifying the age of customers and 
controlling customers inside and outside. Door staff can also assist in making 
customers feel safe within premises.  
  
Age Policy 
 
A mandatory conditions imposed on all licences that sell alcohol requires premises 
licence holders to have an age verification policy. The Licensing Authority 
encourages all licence holders and applicants to adopt a ‘Challenge 25’ policy in 
order to ensure that underage sales are prevented. 
 
Pub Watch 
 
Licence holders running pubs and clubs are encouraged to participate in the Oadby 
and Wigston Pub Watch group where best practice and concerns within in the local 
area can be shared.    
 

Public Safety 
 
The Health and Safety at Work Act and the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 
2005 are aimed at protecting public safety and the Licensing Authority does not 
intend to duplicate requirements of existing statutory provisions.  However, premises 
will be expected to ensure a level of compliance that promotes public safety. 
 
Licence holders should have documented risk assessments for their day to day 
business and carry out further risk assessments should they be intending to  carry 
out events or functions that they do not normally hold.  
 
Such steps may include the setting of a capacity limit for all, or separate parts, of the 
premises or the use of door staff or stewards to control admission and to control 
customers inside premises and at outdoor events. 
 

The Prevention of Public Nuisance 
 
The Licensing Authority recommends that before an application is made, the 
applicant identifies the impact that their potential licence would have on its 
neighbourhood and identify controls to minimise that impact. Advice and assistance 
in undertaking this task should be sought from the Environmental Health team. 
 
The primary sources of public nuisance occurs from entertainment activities and the 
noise of customers. The later into the evening such activities occur the more likely it 
is to be considered a nuisance.  A nuisance is also more likely to arise where the 
premises are situated within a residential area as opposed to a more commercial 

Page 31



 

 21 

town centre. 
 
To control such nuisance it may be appropriate for there to be a limitation on hours of 
operation or on the hours of certain activities. For instance, it may be appropriate to 
allow premises to open until midnight but for entertainment activities to cease at 
23:00 p.m. Measures such as keeping windows and doors closed when 
entertainment occurs, positioning speakers away from neighbouring properties or the 
use of a noise limiter may be of consideration. 
 
Steps to prevent noise, disturbance and anti-social behaviour arising from the 
external use of the premises such as people arriving at, or leaving the premises, the 
opening and closing of car doors or the use of smoking shelters and beer gardens 
also need to be considered. 
 
Stricter controls offered by an applicant will be seen as appropriate in areas that are 
closer in proximity to residential accommodation. 
 
    

The Protection of Children from Harm 
 
Licences may be sought for a wide variety of premises and it is not possible for a 
Policy to anticipate every situation where children may be at risk.  The Licensing 
Authority will not seek to limit the access of children to licensed premises unless it is 
necessary to protect children from harm.   
 
The Licensing Authority considers that it will be appropriate for the protection of 
children to restrict access of children to premises where: 
 

 Entertainment or services of an adult or sexual nature are provided. 
 

 There have been convictions or fixed penalty notices issued due serving 
alcohol to minors. 

 

 There is a strong element of gambling on the premises in excess of that 
considered by the Licensing Authority to be ancillary to the general use of the 
premises.  

 

 Where the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises is the exclusive 
or primary purpose of the services provided at the premises. 

 
Conditions will not be imposed on a license so as to require the admission of children 
as that is a matter for the discretion of the licensee.  
 
Children and films 
 
Licence holders for premises authorised to show films are expected to prevent 
children from viewing films outside of the British Board of Film Classification or other 
film classification board approved by the Licensing Authority.   
 
Children and Entertainment Events 
 

Page 32



 

 22 

Where a significant number of unaccompanied children will be present during an 
entertainment event, the licensing Authority will expect that an adequate number of 
adult staff are present to control and ensure the safety of the children. 
 
Proof of Age Cards 
 
The Licensing Authority expects all responsible licensed premises to have an 
adopted age verification policy evidenced in writing. The authority would suggest as 
best practice that premises that sell alcohol adopt the “Challenge 25” and only accept 
photographic ID as proof of age. The most reliable proof of age includes a passport, 
a photographic driving licence, or a proof of age card complying with the Proof of Age 
Standards Scheme (PASS). 
 
Refusals Registers 
 
All licence holders of premises that authorise the sale of alcohol are expected to 
maintain and use written refusals registers. This requires the licence holder, DPS, or 
members of staff to record all occasions where a customer has sought to purchase 
alcohol and has been refused.  
 
Some operators may go one step further and maintain a written challenge register 
and record all people challenged for appropriate ID and the outcome, whether 
acceptable ID was shown and the sale made or the sale refused. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Once a licence has been granted the Act allows for the licence to be reviewed by one 
or more of the Responsible Authorities or any other person affected by its activities 
such as a resident or local business. 
 
This ensures that those who hold a premises licence continue to operate in such a 
manner that does not undermine the licensing objectives. 
 
If a review has been applied for a further hearing will be held before a sub-committee 
of the Licensing Authority to consider the evidence of the alleged activities or conduct 
undermining the licensing objectives.  
 
Where a standard review of a premises licence has been applied for the Licensing 
Authority are responsible for advertising the review by placing a notice on the 
premises and on its website.  
 
The Licensing Authority will check the notice displayed on the premises regularly but 
is aware that the licence holder may be tempted to remove the notice in order to 
frustrate the licensing authority in complying with the regulations and determining the 
review application.  
 
The Council does not believe that it is in the interest of the licensing objectives and 
the residents of the Borough to have a review delayed in such manner so as to allow 

PART 26: Reviews of Premises Licences 
 

Page 33



 

 23 

premises to continue to trade when concerns have been raised that it is undermining 
the licensing objectives. In such instances the Council will use its best endeavours to 
ensure that it complies with the regulations but will not deem the review application to 
be invalidated when intentionally frustrated by the licence holder of the premises 
being reviewed. 
 
Where there are more serious instances of crime and disorder occurring from a 
premises within the Borough the Leicestershire Police have powers to call for a 
Summary Review to enable the Licensing Authority to hold a hearing within 48 hours 
to put in place interim steps that must be followed by the licence holder until a full 
hearing can be heard, which must be within 28 days of the application for review 
having been made. 
 
It is not mandatory for a premises licence holder who is having their premises licence 
reviewed to attend the hearing. However, the Licensing Authority assumes that those 
who intend to operate legally and responsibly will attend in order to work with the 
licensing authority and other responsible authorities. The Licensing Authority will 
therefore take into consideration the evidence before it as to the alleged incidents 
undermining the objectives, the risks to members of the public of such incidents 
being allowed to continue and the licence holders conduct and communication with 
the authorities leading up to the review.  The Licensing Authority will either adjourn 
the hearing or continue with it in the applicants absence where it is of the opinion that 
it is appropriate, necessary and proportionate to do so for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 inserted section 172A into the 
Act which enables the licensing authority to make an early morning restriction order 
(EMRO). An EMRO will be made by the Licensing Authority if it deems it appropriate 
for the promotion of the licensing objectives and if made will restrict the sale of 
alcohol during a specified period between midnight and 6am.  
 
If an EMRO is in affect it will prevent the sale or supply of alcohol during the times 
specified in that Order and will override the provisions of any premises licences, club 
premises certificates and temporary event notices that may have been granted. 
 
The intention of such an Order is to reduce alcohol related issues in local areas and 
the problems caused by late night drinking.  
 
Prior to making an Order the Licensing Authority is required to follow a statutory 
process that requires the proposed order to be advertised for a minimum of 42 days 
on its website, in a local newspaper and by sending notice of the Order to all affected 
licence holders. 
 
During this 42 day period representations either for or against the proposed Order 
can be submitted in writing to the Licensing Authority. Representations will be 
considered at a hearing.  

PART 27: Early Morning Restriction Orders 
 

Page 34



 

 24 

 
After a hearing the Licensing Authority will then determine whether or not to go 
ahead with making the Order and if it does so must ensure that it is advertised for at 
least further 28 days before it comes into affect.   
 
EMROs do not apply to the following: 
 

 Premises which are a hotel, guest house, lodging house or hostel where the 
supply of alcohol from midnight – 6am is made only to guests staying at the 
hotel who shall consume it in their room 

 Premises which are authorised to supply alcohol for consumption from 
midnight – 6am on New Year’s Day, but are not authorised to supply alcohol 
at these times on any other day of the year.  

 To the sale and or supply of alcohol provided at time authorised by a licensing 
hours orders made by the Secretary of State under s172 of the Licensing Act 
2003 for special occasions deemed to be of ‘exceptional international, national 
or local significance’ by the Secretary of State  unless the licensing hours 
order provides otherwise.)  

 
The making of an EMRO is a restriction that is contrary to the original intention of the 
Act by recreating arbitrary fixed trading hours and affects the rights of businesses in 
the area. The Licensing Authority will not make such an Order lightly and will require 
evidence to be placed before it that it is appropriate for the licensing objectives for 
such an Order to be made.  The Licensing Authority will normally expect the Police to 
provide the majority of this evidence but will consider the evidence of any other 
authority or person on its own merits. 
 
If the licensing objectives are being undermined within the Borough or in a part of the 
Borough that suggests an EMRO is necessary, the Licensing Authority will expect the 
Responsible Authorities to have at first worked with those premises in the Borough or 
part of the Borough that are causing the concerns to resolve the issues. The 
Licensing Authority shall be satisfied that sufficient efforts have been made to 
promote the licensing objectives without requiring an Order before such an Order is 
made. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The cost of policing the night-time economy can result in members of the public  
unfairly contributing to costs of public authorities resulting from the business activities 
of premises that profit from the provision of licensable activities late at night. 
 
A late night levy (LNL) is a contribution from the holders of a premises licence or club 
premises certificates that hold ‘late night authorisations’ and operate during the hours 
of midnight and 6am to the policing of the late night economy. 
 
In deciding whether to impose this levy, the Licensing Authority will consider; 
 

PART 28: Late Night Levy 
 

Page 35



 

 25 

 the costs of policing and any other such arrangements which would be 
required to address crime or disorder in relation to the supply of alcohol from 
midnight – 6am and 

 the desire to raise revenue for the local policing body for the purposes of 
reducing crime and public nuisance, promoting public safety and the cleaning 
of any relevant highways or land in the area.  

 
A LNL would apply to the whole of the Borough. The amount payable by each 
premises is prescribed by regulations and will vary based on the rateable value of the 
premises. 
 
The Licensing Authority is required to decide the date on which the LNL will come 
into force, the times of the ‘late night supply period’ and any permitted 
exemption/reduction categories and the amount of the net amount of LNL payments 
which is to be given to the local policing body.  
 
Before introducing a LNL, the Licensing Authority is required to consult the Chief 
Officer of Leicestershire Police and those that hold a relevant premises licence or 
CPC will be required to pay the levy should it come to affect.  The Licensing Authority 
will also advertise the proposed LNL on its website and in a local newspaper or other 
such circular/document. 
 
The Regulations provide for the following categories of premises to be exempt from 
the requirement to pay a levy: 

 Hotels, guest houses, lodging houses, hostels 

 Theatres 

 Cinemas 

 Bingo halls 

 Community Amateur Sports Clubs (CASCs) 

 Community premises 

 Country village pubs 

 Business Improvement Districts (BIDs) 

 Premises authorised to supply alcohol between midnight – 6am on New 
Year’s Day but otherwise not authorised to do so on any other day of the year 

 
The regulations also provide that reductions to the levy will be given to premises that 
are members of a relevant arrangement authorised by the Licensing Authority – such 
as a best practice scheme or premises that are in receipt of Small Business Rate 
Relief and have a rateable value of less than £12,000. 
 
Presently the Licensing Authority are not satisfied that the costs of policing the night 
time economy in the Borough justify the imposition of a LNL. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Licensing Authority recognises that there can be confusion about the difference 
between “need” and “cumulative impact” of premises on the licensing objectives, for 
example, on crime and disorder.  “Need” concerns the commercial demand for 

PART 29: Cumulative Impact 
 

Page 36



 

 26 

another pub, restaurant, etc. and is not a matter for a Licensing Authority in 
discharging the licensing functions or for this statement of licensing policy, but is a 
matter for planning committees and for the commercial market.  On the other hand, 
the cumulative impact of licensed premises on the promotion of the licensing 
objectives is a proper matter for the Licensing Authority and its licensing committee 
to consider. 
 
In certain situations the number, type and density of premises selling alcohol may be 
associated with serious problems of crime and disorder.  Where the impact on 
surrounding areas of customers taken together may be greater than the usual impact 
of customers from individual premises, the Licensing Authority may consider that an 
area has become saturated with licensed premises.  The Licensing Authority may 
consider that a special policy is needed to deal with this cumulative impact 
 
The authority recognises that once away from licensed premises, there is always a 
risk that a minority of consumers will behave badly and unlawfully.  Depending on the 
circumstances, there are other mechanisms available for addressing such issues for 
instance: 
 

 planning controls; 

 positive measures to create a safe and clean town centre environment in 
partnership with local businesses, transport operators and other departments 
of the local authority; 

 

 the provision of CCTV surveillance in town centres, ample taxi ranks, provision 
of public conveniences open late at night, street cleaning and litter patrols; 

 

 powers of local authorities to designate parts of the local authority area as 
places where alcohol may not consumed publicly; 

 

 police enforcement of the general law concerning disorder and anti-social 
behaviour, including the issuing of fixed penalty notices; 

 

 the prosecution of any personal licence holder or member of staff at such 
premises who is selling alcohol to people who are drunk; 

 

 the confiscation of alcohol from adults and children in designated areas; 
 

 police powers to close down instantly for up to 24 hours any licensed premises 
or temporary event on grounds of disorder, the likelihood of  disorder or noise 
emanating from the premises causing a nuisance; and 

 

 the power of the police, other responsible authorities or a local resident or 
business to seek a review of the licence or certificate in question; 

 

 other local initiatives that similarly address these problems.   
 

Page 37



 

 27 

 
 
 

The Licensing Authority previously adopted a special policy on cumulative impact 
across the Borough in relation to premises that sold or supplied alcohol for 
consumption off the premises. The Licensing Authority no longer believes that there 
is sufficient evidence that any area of the Borough is currently saturated with 
premises of one type that cumulatively is having a negative impact on the licensing 
objectives.  

The absence of a special policy does not prevent a Responsible Authority or 
Interested Party from making a representation to the grant or variation of a licence or 
to the Licensing Authority generally, that the grant of further licences in an area will 
have a negative cumulative impact on one or more of the licensing objectives. 
However, the onus will be on the Responsible Authority or Interested Party to lay the 
evidential base that a negative cumulative impact is occurring or will occur should a 
licence be granted. The cumulative impact can be expected to be different for 
premises with different styles and characteristics. 
 
If a Responsible Authority, or other person, has identified a concern about crime and 
disorder or public nuisance and the Authority considers that the available evidence 
demonstrates that crime and disorder or public nuisance are arising and are caused 
by the customers of licensed premises in an identifiable area (or that the risk factors 
are such that the area is reaching a point when a cumulative impact is imminent) 
then the Authority will: 
 

 Identify the concern and the licensing objective to which it relates (i.e. Crime 
and Disorder or Public Nuisance).  

 Consider whether there is good evidence that crime and disorder or nuisance 
are happening and are caused by the customers of licensed premises, or that 
a risk of cumulative impact is imminent.  

 Identify the boundaries of the area where problems are occurring. 

 Consult with those specified in section 5(3) of the 2003 Act and subject to the 
outcome  of the consultation.  

 And after considering the evidence and the responses of those consulted 
decide whether or not to declare a special policy. 

 
The effect of a cumulative impact policy of this kind, if adopted, would be to create a 
rebuttable presumption that applications for new premises licences or applications for 
material variations to existing premises licences within the area covered by the policy 
will normally be refused. Where a special policy is in effect it will be for an applicant 
to lay the necessary evidence that the granting of the licence would not produce the 
cumulative impact as described above. 
 
The saturation policy will only come into effect where relevant representations are 
received in relation to a specific application.  If there are no representations the 
Licensing Authority must grant a premises licence in accordance with the application.  
 

PART 30: Special Policy on Cumulative Impact 
 
 
 

Page 38



 

 28 

The Licensing Authority recognises however, that such a policy cannot be absolute 
and would continue to consider each application on its own individual merit.  
Licences unlikely to add significantly to the problems of saturation or cumulative 
impact would still be approved.  
 
The Authority acknowledges that the impact will be different for premises with 
different styles and characteristics. 
 
If, following consultation, a special policy was adopted, the Authority would review 
this at least every 5 years and if it considers that it needs to be amended will 
undertake appropriate consultation before any amendment is made.  
 
 A special saturation policy would not be used to: 
 

 remove a licence when representations are received about problems with an 
existing licensed premises;  

  justify the rejection of modifications to a licence except where those 
modifications are directly relevant to the special policy;  

 adopt quotas or set terminal hours in a particular area that pre-determine the 
individual merits of any application. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Gambling Act 2005 
 
The Gambling Act 2005 provides a variety of exemptions and special provisions for 
premises that hold a premises licence or club premises certificate.    
 
Further details on such provisions are available from the Council by viewing its 
statement of Gambling Policy or from the Gambling Commission. 
 
When providing activities under the Gambling Act from a licensed premises the 
designated premises supervisor (DPS) takes on a special role for compliance (known 
as the designated person) and is legally responsible for ensuring that those activities 
are carried out in accordance with the Gambling Act and the codes of practice issued 
under it.  
 
The Licensing Authority are aware that whilst small scale gambling within bars and 
clubs can be an enjoyable pastime for many people there is the potential for alcohol 
to play a role in customers gambling more than they can afford. The Licensing 
Authority therefore expects premises that provide gambling related facilities to act 
responsibly.  
 
The Licensing Authority believes that a failure to organise gambling related activities 
responsibly undermines the licensing objectives and if such conduct results in the 
review of a premises licence the Licensing Authority may revoke the premises 
licence or remove the designated premises supervisor from the licence. 

PART 31: Other regulatory regimes  
 
 

Page 39



 

 29 

Planning 
 
Licensing and planning are separate regulatory regimes with separate 
considerations. Premises conducting licensable activities will require the appropriate 
planning permission as well as a licence under the Act. The grant of one does not 
avoid the need for the other. 
 
Planning considerations are not considerations for the Licensing Authority. However, 
where a representation is made by the Local Planning Authority suggesting that 
planning permission is not likely to be granted as it will have an affect on the local 
amenity (i.e. cause public nuisance) and undermine the licensing objectives the 
Licensing Authority will consider the evidence and expertise of the planning authority. 
 
When making such a decision the Licensing Authority will consider whether or not it 
is appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives to grant a licence for a 
premises in excess of the hours permitted under planning legislation for that 
premises. A key consideration will be the evidence of the planning authority as to the 
reasons why such consent will not be granted and how those reasons relate to the 
licensing objectives.   

Building Control 

 
Building regulations are separate to the licensing regime and Building Control are not 
a responsible authority and unable to object to licence applications or review 
premises licences. However, building regulations are designed to ensure the safety 
of members of the public within premises and evidence of lack of compliance with, or 
failure to correctly carry out work required by Building Control could be used by the 
Fire and Rescue Service or Environmental Health as evidence of a public safety risk 
to review or object to a premises licence.  
 
It is therefore imperative that applicants for licences and existing licence holders 
ensure that they comply with building regulations. 
 

Fire Safety 
 
The Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 requires business operators to carry 
out a thorough assessment of the risks of fire to members of the public on their 
premises. 
 
It is not the place of the Leicestershire Fire and Rescue service or the Licensing 
Authority to carry out, or condition, these assessments, as it is a legal duty under the 
above Order. Failure to do so by a licence holder will endanger members of the 
public and is a ground for the Licensing Authority to hear a review of a premises 
licence upon the application of a responsible authority. 
 

Health and Safety  
 
Licensed premises, as an employer of staff and by inviting members of the public 
onto their premises, have a number of duties under health and safety legislation. This 
legislation relates to numerous areas such as the hours worked by staff, the risks of 
broken glass to staff members and customers, food safety and hygiene and many 

Page 40



 

 30 

more areas.   Applicants and licence holders should ensure that they are familiar with 
the appropriate and relevant legislation and are able to comply with it. 

 
Duplication 

 
The Licensing Authority recognises that it is unnecessary and inappropriate to 
duplicate existing legislative requirements by placing similar conditions on a premise 
licence.  However, in certain instances it may be appropriate for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives where it is clear to the Licensing Authority that the applicant or 
licence holder lacks the knowledge and awareness of the legislation and to not 
condition the premises licence would undermine the licensing objectives. 
 

  
 
 

 
The Licensing Authority has based its delegation of functions on the Guidance issued 
by the Home Secretary under section 182 of the Act. 
 
The Licensing and Regulatory Committee or a sub-committee of three or more 
members formed from it will determine the following: 
 

 An application for a personal licence following a representation from the 
Police.  

 

 An application for a review, or summary review, of a premises licence or 
club premises certificate. 

 

 Determination of a temporary event notice following the objection of the 
Police and/or environmental health. 

 

 An application for a premises licence or club premises certificate where 
relevant representations have been made and not withdrawn. 

 

 Application for a provisional statement where relevant representations 
have been made and not withdrawn. 

 

 Application for variation to a premises licence or club premises certificate 
where relevant representations have been made and not withdrawn. 

 

 Application to vary a designated premises supervisor following an objection 
from the Police.  

 

 Application for transfer of a premises licence following an objection from 
the Police. 

 

 Application for interim authority following an objection from the Police.  
 
 

 
 

The relevant Licensing Officer will determine the following matters: 
 

PART 32: Delegation of Functions 
 

Page 41



 

 31 

 The determination of a minor variation 
 

 The determination of an application for a new or a variation of a premises 
licence or club premises certificate where representations have been 
made and withdrawn following an agreement where the applicant 
confirms an amendment to their operating schedule and where, in the 
opinion of the Officer such an amendment is within the application as 
advertised. 

 

 The determination to include the alternative mandatory condition 
(removal of DPS) on a community premises. 

 

 The determination of whether a Club is a qualifying club. 
 

 That an application has been made and advertised in accordance with 
the legislative requirements. 

 

 That a representation is relevant, or frivolous or vexatious. 
 

 That an application for a review is frivolous or vexatious.  
 

Unless set out above or specifically within the Act all other matters will be determined 
by the Head of Corporate Resources.  
 
 

 
 
 
The Licensing Authority believes that legislative requirements and the need for 
certain activities to be licensed are undermined if not proactively enforced. The 
Licensing Authority also accepts that excessive enforcement can be burdensome to 
businesses within the Borough.  
 
Enforcement activities will be targeted and risk assessed so that premises that 
promote the licensing objectives well and work with the Authority are not unduly 
troubled and more focus is placed on those businesses that undermine the 
objectives. 
 
The Licensing Authority will ensure compliance with Council’s Corporate 
Enforcement Policy as may be amended from time to time. The Licensing Authority 
aims to ensure that enforcement is open, fair, reasonable and proportionate. 
 
Enforcement activities by the Licensing Team will be designed to ensure compliance 
with the conditions attached to licences and the requirements of the Licensing Act 
itself.  
 
The Licensing Authority also acknowledges that the responsible authorities set out in 
the Act have a legislative duty to take the lead on issues within their remit.  Where 
concerns are identified by the Licensing Team that relate to the role and duties of 
another responsible authority the Licensing Team will expect that authority to lead on 
the investigation and resolution of the issues.  

PART 33: Enforcement  
 

Page 42



 

 32 

 
The Authority recognises that other controls are available outside of the Act to 
promote the Licensing objectives and responsible authorities should not use the Act 
as a more convenient method to resolve issues that are better suited for resolution 
under other legislation which they have the power to enforce.   
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Act requires the Licensing Authority to keep this Policy under review and to 
formally review and adopt a new Policy at least every 5 years. 
 
Before adopting a new Policy the Licensing Authority are required to at least consult 
with the Leicestershire Police, the Leicestershire Fire and Rescue Service, the Local 
Health Board, individuals or organisations representative of licence holders within the 
Borough and individuals or organisations representative of businesses and residents 
within the Borough.  
 
Minor changes may be made to this Policy by the Licensing Authority without 
consultation where those changes are simply to keep this Policy updated with 
legislative amendments or to clarify and make clear a Policy intention already 
expressed in this document and having already been consulted on. 

PART 34: Duration and review of this Policy  
 

Page 43



Service Delivery 
Committee

Tuesday, 21 March 
2017 Matter for Information

Title: Corporate Enforcement Update

Author: Paulette Samuels (Environmental Health Team Leader)

1. Introduction

There are a broad range of environmental standards and legislation enforced by 
Environmental Health either independently or inter-dependently with other sections of 
the Council.  This Report seeks to inform Committee of the responsibilities and the 
enforcement outcomes achieved in the last two months.

2. Recommendations

Members are asked to note the contents of the report.

3. Information

3.1. Asbestos Case - Marstown Avenue, South Wigston

Following positive action by the Council and in cooperation with the site owner the 
site has been cleared of asbestos containing material at his expense. We are just 
awaiting final confirmation that the gardens are now safe for residents to use in order 
that the control measure implemented by PHE (Public Health England) can be 
reviewed.  

Residents are regularly updated by letter on the current situation the last 
correspondence being on the 10th February 2017. PHE are also aware of the action 
being taken on the site.  

3.2. Dog-Fouling

Over the last two months the main focus of activity has been the provision of advice 
and proactively stencilling and placing additional signage where necessary across 
the Borough. Regular monitoring is still being done in the parks and open spaces 
across the Borough.  Eighteen (18) monitoring visits have been undertaken evenly 
across the Borough’s Parks and open spaces and is seemingly acting as a deterrent.

Timber Street has been a problem area in particular during these Winter months.  
This was due to ‘opportunistic’ dog owners who were allowing their dogs to foul the 
street during the darker evenings. 

Reliable intelligence has led to letters being sent to alleged perpetrators and the 
complainants being advised of this action so as to encourage further reporting, 
where necessary.  Educational signs have also been erected in the area to further 
encourage responsible dog ownership by owners cleaning up after their dogs. 

A visit on 6th March 2017 confirmed the success of this intervention as there was a 
noticeable improvement in the standard of cleanliness in this street.  

There were 26 dog related cases reported during January and February. Just over 

Page 44



half of the complaints were directly related to dog fouling on the streets leading to 
advice; stencilling and signage.10 stray dogs were picked up and taken to Kennels. 
Others reported incidents were of dogs being aggressive to neighbouring 
households.

3.3. Pest Control

44 initial requests regarding  pests in domestic settings were received during 
January and February and the breakdown is shown in the table below:

Pest Type Numbers
Rats 29

Mice 10

Cockroaches 0

Squirrels 3

Fleas/bedbugs 2

Birds 0

TOTAL 44

3.4. Enforcement of Litter, Fly-Tipping and Accumulations

These three areas tend to merge in terms of how they are classified, how they differ 
and what action can be taken and by whom.

Presently, there is a shared responsibility between Environmental Health and the 
Clean and Green Team.  

3.5. a. Fly-tipping and Accumulations

Environmental Health received 8 reports of fly tipping during the period which were 
investigated and progressed within the stipulated response times.  In addition to this 
the Borough is regularly monitored for any nuisances in line with the requirements of 
the Environmental Protection Act 1990 section 79 (1).

Under the Anti Social Behaviour Crime and Policing Act 2014 (ASBCP 2014) s.43-
58., Four Community Protection Warning Notices have been served since January 
2017. This is a new power used by the Council in pursuing ongoing problems or 
nuisances which negatively affect the community’s quality of life by targeting those 
responsible.

No Fixed Penalty Notices were served in this period due to the new approach by 
Officers resulting in a more effective and longer lasting outcome.

1 Simple Caution was administered for a fly tipping offence.

3.6. b. Litter

In the Oadby and Wigston leaflet prepared for residents entitled ‘Litter and the Law – 
a guide for the public’ it states that “Litter can be as small as a sweet wrapper, or as 
large as a bag of rubbish, or it can mean lots of items scattered about. The 
legislation also specifically clarifies that discarded gum products, cigarette ends, and 
matches are types of litter.”

Page 45



Section 87 (1) of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 states the offence of ‘leaving 
litter’ as such:
“A person is guilty of an offence if he throws down, drops or otherwise deposits any 
litter in any place to which this section applies and leaves it.”

Further in that section it refers to litter being left in the open air in the area of a 
principal litter authority to which the public has access with or without payment.

3.7. c. Fly Tipping

Fly tipping is the illegal deposit of waste on land contrary to Section 33(1)(a) of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990. The types of waste fly tipped range from ‘black 
bag’ waste to large deposits of materials such as industrial waste, tyres, construction 
material and liquid waste. Fly tipping is a significant blight on local environments; a 
source of pollution; a potential danger to public health and hazard to wildlife. It also 
undermines legitimate waste businesses where unscrupulous operators undercut 
those operating within the law.

Local Councils and the Environment Agency (EA) both have a responsibility in 
respect of illegally deposited waste. Local Councils deal with most cases of fly 
tipping on public land, whilst the EA investigates and enforces against the larger, 
more serious and organised illegal waste crimes.

It is worth noting that in 2015/16 the estimated cost to Local Authorities in England 
was £49.8 million.1

3.8. d. Accumulations

This describes any collection of waste material(s) in a specific location and could be 
as a result of the act of littering or fly-tipping.  In section 79 (e) of the EPA1990 an 
accumulation is included in the list of statutory nuisance as:

“any accumulation or deposit which is prejudicial to health or a nuisance”

This essentially deals with the residue left from littering or fly-tipping whether it 
contains organic, putrescible matter such as food items or inert material such as 
concrete, metal and wood.  If the accumulation attracts vermin due to its content, the 
period of time it has been in situ or its proximity to a site known to experience such 
infestations, it could be removed under Section 5 of the Prevention of Damage by 
Pests Act 1949.  Environmental Health have powers to serve statutory notices for 
sites to be cleared and will enforce site clearance to the default of the site owner, if 
the notice has not been complied with.  

3.9. e. Current Operational Practices

The quantity, location and content of deposited waste, determines who could be 
responsible for removing it to a licensed waste site.  Currently Oadby and Wigston 
operate a ‘fluid’ arrangement between Environmental Health and the ‘ Clean and 
Green Team’, who are the Duty Body (as defined by section 89 of EPA 1990) 
responsible for keeping the public land and certain highways, which they are 
responsible for within the Borough, clear of litter and refuse.  

Refuse would be the waste arising from a private household, or, by contractual 

1 Gov.uk website. “Fly tipping in England” Extract from the details of document produced 2nd 
March 2017.

Page 46



arrangement or commercial premises.   At the moment, household refuse is 
presented for collection in black bin bags and recycled waste in orange bags.  This 
often leads to confusion when being reported as a problem of deposited waste. 
Sometimes bags presented for collection are not collected (usually because 
households have placed more than 3 bags of rubbish for collection on one day).  
These are sometimes reported as ‘fly tipping’.  Initial investigation by either 
Environmental Health or the Clean and Green Team will extract evidence from the 
bagged waste to identify the name and address of the perpetrator.  If no such 
identifiable information is found then, the next point of consideration is where the 
waste is located.  If identifiable information is retrieved from bagged waste then a 
visit would be made to that address and the occupants advised to remove their 
waste immediately.  The opportunity is also seized to educate householders on what 
materials within their waste are recyclable or advised to make a request for 
additional bags to be collected based on the size of the household, to avoid future 
missed collections from that address.  The non-collection of extra bags is often cited 
as the ‘reason’ for fly tipping.

The Clean and Green Team conduct daily patrols of the district and items such as 
Sofas or Fridges and Freezers dumped in the district are now routinely picked up the 
following Monday after the notification. Other items are collected daily.

This approach is designed to maximise the use of resources on the day when 
residents can also pay for their ‘Bulky’ items to be collected, and access is granted to 
the local refuse disposal site. (Exemptions and subsidised prices are available for 
residents in receipt of benefits, and/or classed as disabled or OAPs as detailed on 
the Council Website.)

Depending on the location of where the items are dumped, enquiries are made to try 
to identify the culprit.  If successful, then formal action can taken by the 
Environmental Health Team by virtue of the service of statutory warnings or notices 
under either, the EPA1990 or Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014, 
where Community Protection Warnings or Notices can be served on occupants or 
responsible individuals.  This latter process is followed where waste is reported and 
situated on private land and where ‘Repeat Offenders’ have been identified for 
referral.

Routine monitoring of ‘hotspots’ is done daily and/or in response to customer 
complaints or referrals from Members.  Two particular areas currently being 
monitored are Welford Road (lay-by) and the ‘country lane’ section of Newton Lane.

3.10. Abandoned Vehicles

There have been 19 reports received of abandoned vehicles during the last 2 
months, all of which were investigated and progressed.  In several cases, the 
reported vehicle did not meet the criteria for an abandoned vehicle so no formal 
action could be taken.  In all such cases, the complainant was advised of the 
outcome of our investigation.  

Further work is being done with the Customer Contact Centre to improve the quality 
of referrals, this includes gathering additional information from the complainant as to 
potential ownership, why is the vehicle abandoned and the duration the vehicle has 
been in the location, this has reduced the number of complaints of illegal or nuisance 
parking being reported as ‘abandoned vehicles.

3.11. The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA) 2000

The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 is designed to properly manage the 
Page 47



process of collecting intelligence when investigating potential crimes.

The authorisation of directed surveillance is covered in section 28 and would be 
applied for under subsection (3) if it is:

(b) for the purpose of preventing or detecting crime or of preventing disorder.

This allows Officers to conduct monitoring and erect where deemed necessary, 
closed circuit television (CCTV), to collect evidence which may result in criminal 
conviction, such as for reports of fly tipping across the Borough.  Overt surveillance 
does not require the same level of authorisation.

Monitoring

There have been no RIPA applications made in the last 4 months.

Background Documents:-
None.

Email:  paulette.samuels@oadby-wigston.gov.uk Tel:  (0116) 257 2613

Implications
Financial (CR) CR1: - Decrease in Financial Resources.
Legal (AC) No significant implications.

Risk (SG) CR6: Regulatory Governance
CR4: Damage to Council’s Reputation - By failing to take action.
No significant implications.
Equality Assessment:-Equalities (SG)

Initial Screening Full Assessment Not Applicable

Page 48


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the Previous Meeting held on 29 September 2016
	Minutes

	5 Action List Arising from the Meeting held on 29 September 2016
	7 Environmental Health and Licensing Sections Update
	Appendix 1 - Scale of Licensing Fees and Charges (2017/18)
	Appendix 2 - Statistical Data for Food Hygiene Inspections (2016/17)
	Appendix 3 - Statement of Licensing Policy (2015-2020)
	Appendix 4 - Corporate Enforcement Update, 21/03/2017 Service Delivery Committee


